
Planning and Zoning Commission

City of Grand Prairie

Meeting Agenda - Final

City Hall

300 W. Main Street 

Grand Prairie, Texas

Council Chambers and Video Conference5:30 PMMonday, November 9, 2020

Due to the ongoing the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, this meeting of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission shall be held in-person in the Council Chamber at Grand Prairie 

City Hall, as well as by videoconference.  Members of the Commission and the public may 

elect to participate by attending the meeting in-person, or remotely via videoconference.  

Members of the public may participate in the meeting remotely via broadcast by webinar 

or telephone through the following URL location:

You are invited to a Zoom webinar.

When: Nov 9, 2020 05:30 PM Central Time (US and Canada)

Topic: City of Grand Prairie - Planning & Zoning Meeting

Please click the link below to join the webinar:

https://gptx.zoom.us/j/98058650078?pwd=MEZZRi96SmsvWnUzbURqOHNVU0Z6dz09

Passcode: gdARBp467f

Or iPhone one-tap : 

    US: +13462487799,,98058650078#,,,,,,0#,,4467898154#  or 

+14086380968,,98058650078#,,,,,,0#,,4467898154#

Or Telephone:

    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

        US: +1 346 248 7799  or +1 408 638 0968  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 215 8782  or 

+1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 876 9923  or +1 301 715 8592

Webinar ID: 980 5865 0078

Passcode: 4467898154

    International numbers available: https://gptx.zoom.us/u/a7GxSI5wd

All meeting participants attending remotely will be automatically muted until it is their 

turn to speak.  To be recognized to speak, use the “raise hand” feature in the Zoom meeting 

platform.  Those joining the meeting by phone may press *9 to raise your hand.  After 

speaking, please remute your phone by pressing *6. 

Any speaker wishing to visually display documents in connection with a presentation must 

submit them to sware@gptx.org and msespinoza@gptx.org in PDF format no later than 3 

o’clock p.m. on Monday, November 9th.

Page 1 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020



November 9, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Call to Order - Commissioner Briefing 

It is the intent of the Planning and Zoning Commission to be briefed by staff, and that all 

items on the agenda shall be available or open for discussion during the Briefing Session.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission may ask applicants and other interested parties for 

information or presentations.  All interested parties are invited to attend.  Briefings are 

taped.

*Agenda Review

*COVID Meeting Procedures

                                                 __________________________________

                                                                    Public Hearing                                                             

                                         6:30 p.m. Council Chambers and Video Conference

                                                 __________________________________

                                                  Chairperson Shawn Connor Presiding

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flags and to the Texas Flag 

Citizen Comments -  Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes 

on any item not the agenda by completing and submitting a speaker card.

Public Hearing Consent Agenda

Items listed on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be 

approved by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of the Public 

Hearing Consent Agenda items unless requested.  If discussion is desired on an item, it will be 

considered separately.  The Commission may ask questions of those present on an item from 

the Public Hearing Consent Agenda.

1 20-10558 Approval of Minutes of the October 26, 2020 P&Z meeting. 

PZ Draft Minutes 10-26-2020.pdfAttachments:

2 20-10559 P201102 - Final Plat - I-30 MacArthur Business Center Addition, Lot 1, Block 3 

(City Council District 5).  Final Plat for Lot 1 Block 3, I-30/MacArthur Business 

Center Addition, creating one lot on 6.033 acres.  Tract 27.4 and Tract 27.5, Joseph 

Graham Survey, Abstract No. 506, City of Grand prairie, Dallas County, Texas, 

zoned PD-41, within the IH-30 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on 

the southwest corner of the IH-30 frontage road and N Bagdad Rd.

Exhibit A P201102 Location MapAttachments:

Page 2 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020



November 9, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Exhibit B P201102 Exhibit B FP I-30 MacArthur Business Center Blk 3, Lot 1

3 20-10560 P201103 - Preliminary Plat - Hamilton Bardin Village (City Council District 4).  

Preliminary Plat for Hamilton Bardin Village, Lots 1-6, Block 3R, creating six lots on 

21.803 acres.  Sheffield Village Addition Phase 4, 5, and 6, Block 3, Lot B, City of 

Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-395, within the SH-360 Corridor 

Overlay District, generally located south of I-20, east of SH-360, and north of Bardin 

Rd, and addressed as 3025 W I-20.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Attachments:

4 20-10561 P201104 - Preliminary Plat - Heritage Towne (City Council District 6).  Preliminary Plat 

for the multifamily and commercial portions of Heritage Towne, a mixed use development 

located along SH-360 and HWY 287. The plat includes 6 lots covering 37.324 acres. 

Located at 2925 Davis Drive, legally described as Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract 

No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas, zoned PD-399 District. Generally 

located north of Hwy 287 and east of HWY 360.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Attachments:

5 20-10562 P200901 - Preliminary Plat - Slink Addition, Lots 1-7, Block 1 (City Council District 2).  

Preliminary Plat creating seven lots on 54.692 acres.  Tract 7 of the William Reed 

Survey, Abstract No. 1193 and Tract 1.1 of the Frederick Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 

395, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-397, within the SH-161 

Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the northwest corner of SH-161 and 

Forum Dr.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Attachments:

Public Hearing Postponement, Recess, and Continuations

In accordance with Section 1.11.5.7 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) a public hearing 

for which notice has been given may be postponed by announcing the postponement at or 

after the time and place the hearing is scheduled to begin.  A public hearing may be recessed 

and continued any time after the hearing has commenced. Section 1.11.5.7.C of the UDC 

states if a postponement or continuance of a public hearing is to a specific date and time no 

later than 60 days from the first or most recent hearing, the announcement of the 

postponement of continuance at the public hearing in which the application has been 

postponed or continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be sufficient notice and 

no additional notice is required. However, the Planning and Zoning Commission may direct 

staff to re-notify postponed or continued applications for which public hearings have not yet 

commenced.

Items for Individual Consideration

Page 3 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020



November 9, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

6 20-10563 S201101 - Site Plan - Hamilton Bardin Village Phase 1 (City Council District 4).  

Site Plan for Phase 1 of Hamilton Bardin Village, which includes 405 multi-family 

units in five buildings with a five-story parking garage on 9.647 acres, a 43,874 sq. ft. 

movie theater on 5.147 acres, and open space on .93 acres.  Sheffield Village 

Addition Phase 4, 5, and 6, Block 3, Lot B, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, 

Texas, zoned PD-395, within the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, generally 

located south of I-20, east of SH-360, and north of Bardin Rd, and addressed as 

3025 W I-20.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Amenity Checklists.pdf

Attachments:

7 20-10564 S200901 - Site Plan - Kalterra Phase 1 (City Council District 2).  Site Plan for a 

multi-family development of 412 units in four buildings on 11.74 acres.  Tract 7 of  the 

William Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1193 and Tract 1.1 of the Frederick Dohme Survey, 

Abstract No. 395, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-397, within 

the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the northwest corner of 

SH-161 and Forum Dr.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Appendix W Amenities.pdf

Exhibit F - Enhanced Screening.pdf

Attachments:

8 20-10565 S200603 - Site Plan - Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park (City Council District 1).  Site Plan 

for Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park, a development with a 210,856 sq. ft. warehouse 

building on 13.62 acres.  Tracts 14.2, Isreal Jennings Survey, Abstract No. 679, City of 

Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial, and addressed as 2400 W 

Hunter Ferrell Rd.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Site Lines.pdf

Attachments:

Public Hearing

Page 4 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020



November 9, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Members of the public may address the Commission on items listed on the agenda under 

Public Hearing Items.  Persons wishing to address the Commission must first complete a 

request to speak card.  A person may also use the request to speak card to indicate his or her 

support or opposition to a case without speaking.  Cards may be picked up at the desk by the 

entrance to the City Council Chambers and may be deposited at the desk or given to a staff 

member.  Speaking time is generally limited to five minutes per speaker.  Per the by-laws of 

the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant and those favoring the request shall have 

a maximum of 30 minutes, including rebuttal, to present their arguments for the request.  

Those in opposition to a request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes to present their 

arguments against the request. When a large group is present, it is encouraged that 

representatives be appointed to speak for the group so that redundant testimony is minimized.  

Commissioners may have questions of those speaking at the public hearing. The time used to 

answer the Commission's questions will not be deducted from the allotted 30 minutes.  These 

rules may be temporarily suspended, in whole or in part, by a unanimous vote of the 

Commission.

9 20-10566 CP200801 - Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City Council District 2).  

Concept Plan for the Cottages at Dechman, a multi-family development with a 

mixture of attached and detached units on 15.91 acres.  Tract 2 of Leonidas O'Gwinn 

Survey, Abstract No. 1105, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned 

PD-20, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located at the 

northwest corner of Dechman Dr and the IH-20 frontage road.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Concept Plan.pdf

Attachments:

10 20-10567 MTP200801 - Amendment to Thoroughfare Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City 

Council District 2).  Amendment to the Master Thoroughfare Plan to remove an 

unnamed collector from the Master Thoroughfare Plan.  The unnamed collector 

creates an additional connection from Fish Creek Rd/Dechman Dr to the Interstate 

20 WB Frontage Rd.

11 20-10568 Z200401A - Zoning Change - Heritage Towne Amendment (City Council District 6).  

A Planned Development Amendment for Heritage Towne, a development on 76.96 

acres which includes single-family, multi-family, commercial, and open space uses. 

The purpose of the request is to add additional commercial zoning along Davis Road. 

Tracts 186713 and 186714, J Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand 

Prairie, Ellis County, Texas.  Zoned PD-399 and addressed as 2925 Davis Drive. 

Generally located north of Hwy 287, and east of HWY 360.

Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf

Exhibit B - Zoning Exhibit.pdf

Exhibit C - Conceptual Renderings.pdf

Attachments:

12 20-10569 SU201101 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Impound Lot at 2409 E Main St (City 

Council District 5).  Specific Use Permit & Site Plan request for Auto Impound uses 

on four industrial lots.  1.402 acres out of the Thomas Collins Survey, Abstract 308, 

Page 5 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020



November 9, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

being Westover Place Addition, Block A, Lots 3,4,7 & 8, City of Grand Prairie, 

Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District and designated Specific Use 

Permit-814A, located in CBD No. 4, generally located southeast of E. Main Street 

and Bagdad Road, and addressed as 2409 E. Main Street.

Exhibit A Location Map SU201101

Exhibit B Site Plan SU201101

Exhibit C Elevations SU201101

Exhibit D Operational Plan SU201101

Exhibit E Legal Descript SU201101

Attachments:

Adjournment

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., the 

Planning and Zoning Commission agenda was prepared and posted on 11/06/2020.

Monica Espinoza

Planning Secretary 

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  If you plan to attend this public meeting and you 

have a disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8255 at least 24 

hours in advance. Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs.

LEGISLATIVE PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

It is the custom and tradition of the members of the Planning and Zoning Commission to 

have an invocation followed by recitals of the United States of America and State of Texas 

pledges of allegiance prior to the beginning of its meetings.  The invocation and pledges 

are directed to and offered solely for the benefit of the members of Commission, though 

members of the audience are welcome to participate.  However, members of the audience 

are not required to participate.  The decision to participate is strictly a matter of personal 

choice and will have no bearing on any matter considered or decision made by the 

Commission during the meeting.

Page 6 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10558 Name: Approval of Minutes of the October 26, 2020 P&Z
meeting.

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:11/2/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/9/2020

Title: Approval of Minutes of the October 26, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: PZ Draft Minutes 10-26-2020.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
Approval of Minutes of the October 26, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



1 
 

 
 

 
 

REGULAR PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 
 OCTOBER 26, 2020 

 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairperson Shawn Connor, Vice-Chairperson Bill Moser, 
Secretary Cheryl Smith, and Commissioners, Josh Spare, Julia Perez, Max Coleman, Eric Hedin, 
Warren Landrum, John Fedorko. 
     
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: none 
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Rashad Jackson, Planning and Development Director, Savannah Ware, 
Chief City Planner, Charles Lee, Senior Planner, Jonathan Tooley, Planner, Mark Dempsey, 
Deputy City Attorney, Brett Huntsman, Transportation Planner, Monica Espinoza, Executive 
Assistant. 
  
Chairperson Shawn Connor called the meeting to order by Video Conference at 6:36 p.m. and 
Commissioner Moser gave the invocation, and Commissioner Spare led the pledge of allegiance 
to the US Flag, and the Texas Flag. 
 
Citizen Comments: None  
 
AGENDA ITEM: #1 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES: To approve the minutes of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting of October 12, 2020.  
  
CONSENT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #2- P201001 - Final Plat - Hill Street Addition 
(City Council District 5).  A Final Plat to establish Lot 1, Block 1, Hill Street Addition, out of a 
13.1509 acre tract.  Located at 1610 and 1614 Hill Street, legally described as 13.1509 acres out 
of the Hein Bilsmirer Survey, Tract 11, Abstract No. 111 and the Pablo Mansola Survey, Tract 1, 
Abstract No. 933, Dallas County, City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Zoned PD-392 District, and 
generally located north of Hill Street and East of State Highway 161. 
 
ITEM #3 – P201101 - Final Plat - Natitex, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council District 1).  A Final Plat 
to establish Lot 1, Block 1, Natitex Addition, out of a .857 acre tract.  Located at 923 S Highway 
161, legally described as .857 acres out of the Elizabeth Gray Survey, Abstract No. 517, Page 
215, Dallas County, City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Zoned PD12 District, and generally located 
north of Desco Lane and east of State Highway 161. 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
 

2 
 

 
 

 
 
ITEM #4- P201002 - Preliminary Plat - I-30/MacArthur Business Center Addition (City Council 
District 5).  Preliminary Plat of Lots 1-2 Block 1, Lots 1-2 Block 2 and Lot 1, Block 3, I-
30/MacArthur Business Center Addition, creating five industrial lots on 16.94 acres.  I-
30/MacArthur Business Center Addition, 16.94 acre tracts situated in the Joseph Graham Survey, 
Abstract No. 506, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned Development-41 
(PD-41) Light Industrial District, within the I-30 Corridor Overlay District, generally located 
south of eastbound I-30 Service Road and north of Gifford Street; west of Bagdad Road 
extending east to Garden Way. 
 
ITEM #5- P201003 - Final Plat - I-30/MacArthur Business Center (City Council District 5).  
Final Plat of Lots 1-2 Block 1, of I-30/MacArthur Business Center Addition, establishing two 
industrial lots on 4.929 acres.  I-30/MacArthur Business Center Addition, 4.29 acre tracts 
situated in the Joseph Graham Survey, Abstract No. 506, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, 
Texas, zoned Planned Development-41 (PD-41) Light Industrial District, within the IH-30 
Corridor Overlay District, generally located south of eastbound I-30 Service Road and north of 
Gifford Street; west of Burbank Way extending east to Garden Way. 

ITEM #6- P201004 - Final Plat - The Lakeside (City Council District 4).  Final Plat of the 
Lakeside, creating 44 single family residential lots and four open space lots on 10 acres.  Tract 
2A1, 2A3, 2A3A1, 2A3B, 2A3C, 2A3D, and 2A03A2 of the Boalis Estes Survey, Abstract No. 
438, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-401, within the Lake Ridge 
Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the north side of Hanger Lowe Rd, east of 
Coastal Blvd, and west of Nautical Dr. 

ITEM #7- P200104 – Final Plat – Mira Lago (Previously Lakeridge Commons) (City Council 
District 4). Final Plat for Lakeridge Commons, creating 98 residential lots on 33.653 acres. Tract 
1, William Linn Survey, Abstract No. 926, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned 
PD-384, within the Lake Ridge Corridor Overlay District, and generally located west of Lake 
Ridge Pkwy, south of Hanger Lowe Rd, and east of Coastal Blvd. 
 
  
Vice-Chairperson Moser moved to approve the minutes, cases P201001, P201101, P201002, 
P201003, P201004 and P200104.  
 
Motion:  Moser 
Second: Coleman                                 
Ayes: Connor, Moser, Spare, Perez, Smith, Landrum, Coleman, Fedorko, Hedin 
Nays:  none 
Approved: 9-0 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
 

3 
 

 
 

Motion:  carried.  
 
 
ITEM FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDREATION: Item # 8 - S201002 - Site Plan - ATS Drive-
Thru (City Council District 1).  Planner Jonathan Tooley presented the case report and gave a 
Power Point presentation for a site plan request for a 10,994 square foot building which will 
include retail and a drive through restaurant on 1.14 acres.  Located at 2615 W Pioneer Parkway, 
legally described as Sam's Properties Addition, Lot 1R, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, 
Texas, zoned Light Industrial District, and generally located south of Pioneer Parkway and west 
of South Great Southwest Parkway. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated the applicant is proposing to develop the north portion of Lot 1R (Hong Kong 
Market) into retail/restaurant spaces. The eastern portion of the building will provide a drive-through 
option a café or restaurant. The proposed layout will be approximately 75 percent restaurant and 25 
percent retail. The applicant only has one tenant lined up at this time, 7 Leaves Café, which will be 
for the drive-thru portion of the building. The property has access from W Pioneer Parkway and will 
have an access easement established to allow access from S Great Southwest Parkway. By having 
access from Great Southwest Parkway, this will allow for garbage trucks to access the dumpster 
location with ease. The owner has executed a written agreement with the property owner of Lot 5R 
(gas station located on the corner of W Pioneer and S GSW) to establish an access easement with the 
driveway situated on the east property line. Mr. Loh will be required to file this agreement as a 
separate instrument and provide staff with a copy and show the instrument on the replat.  

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the proposal as requested 
along with the following conditions: 

 An access easement established with the property owner on the corner of W Pioneer and S 
Great Southwest Parkway. The applicant will need to file the agreement with the County 
and provide a separate instrument number on the replat.  

 A shared parking agreement executed before the issuance of building permits. 

 The property is replatted before the issuance of building permits.  

 

Applicant Matthew Loh, 2625 W Pioneer Parkway Grand Prairie TX. 75051, stepped forward 
representing the case, he stated he wanted to thank the commissioners for their time and working 
with the City of Grand Prairie has always been great. Additionally, he stated there are several 
hurdles they need to overcome which includes an access easement flow moved and was able to 
secure it with the owner of the gas station two days ago. Shared parking isn’t a problem because 
Asia Time Square is here in Grand Prairie to become a tourist destination. There hasn’t been a 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
 

4 
 

 
 

lease signed pending the outcome of today’s commission decision but the owner of 7 Leaves is 
present and has agreed with the same vision for ATS. 

Chairperson Connor stated he likes what they have done with the corner and it has really enhanced 
it. Mr. Coleman wanted to thank Mr. Loh and his family for all the money they have invested in 
Grand Prairie and they have always done a top notch quality product.  

Commissioner Smith thanked Asia Time Square for doing a wonderful job and asked what type of 
cuisine will 7 Leaves Café offer.  

7 Leaves Café Owner, Tony Nguyen, 2805 Greenbrook Ct. Grapevine TX. 76051, stepped forward 
representing the case, he stated this will be the first café drive thru in DFW and 7 Leaves Café 
specializes in severing coffee and tea. He went on to say the product will speak for itself and he 
wanted everyone to know that on every cup, employees’ t-shirt and on store walls it will have the 
quote “Be the change you wish to see in the world” because they believe in bringing community 
together.  

Commissioner Moser asked to get a bit more information about the franchise. Mr. Nguyen stated 
the brand started in Orange County by a family of immigrates 8 years ago. He signed up for 10 
units in DFW with master rights. Houston and Austin also has another 30 units and the brand is in 
6-7 other states now. Mr. Moser asked how many cafes are operating now. Mr. Nguyen stated 25-
26 locations in California, 15-16 franchises opened at the moment. Mr. Moser asked will this café 
be the first one in DFW. Mr. Nguyen stated this will be the 3rd one with there being one in Carrolton 
and in Frisco.  

Commissioner Moser stated Mr. Loh and his family have done so much for the community and likes 
how Mr. Nguyen echoes the family because he believes Grand Prairie is about family. 
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Spare moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case S201002 per staff recommendations.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Spare 
Second:  Moser                           
Ayes:  Connor, Moser, Spare, Perez, Smith, Landrum, Coleman, Fedorko, Hedin 
Nays: none 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
 

5 
 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM # 9- CPA201001 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment - 
2601 Hines Avenue (City Council District 1). Planner Jonathan Tooley presented the case report 
and gave a Power Point presentation for a request to change the Future Land use Map from 
Mixed use to Commercial, Retail, and Office.  Located at 2601 Hines Avenue, legally described 
as Cox and Hines Located at 2601 Hines Avenue, legally described as Cox and Hines 
Subdivision, Lots 1-3, 4A, 5 A, 6-8, Block D, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, 
zoned Commercial Office District, and generally located south of Hines Avenue and west of 
South Great Southwest Parkway. 
 
Mr. Tooley stated the applicant is proposing to construct a commercial business with later 
phasing in retail/restaurants along the Great Southwest Parkway frontage. The request is for a 
change from Mixed Use to Commercial/Retail/Office on the Future Land Use Map (FLUM). 
The 2018 update to the Comprehensive Plan defines these categories as follows: 
 
Commercial/Retail/Office (pg. 58 of the Comprehensive Plan): 
Commercial uses are more intense than retail establishments, yet also provide goods and services 
for the public. Examples of commercial establishments would include hotels, automotive 
services, and big box retailers.  
 
Retail 
This land use type is intended to provide for a variety of restaurants, shops, grocery stores, and 
personal service establishments. Retail uses require high visibility locations and should be 
located in high-traffic areas such as along arterial roadways.  
 
Office 
Office areas provide for low- to medium-rise suburban-scale developments. Generally, permitted 
uses include corporate, professional, medical and financial offices as well as offices for 
individuals and non-profit organizations. These areas can also serve as a lower intensity 
transitional use to adjacent residential areas.  
 
Mixed Use (pg. 58 of the Comprehensive Plan): 
Areas with this land use designation are intended for an appropriately planned mixture of non-
residential and residential uses. They are referred to as mixed-use because it is envisioned that 
these areas would be integrated developments of retail, public, office, and entertainment, with a 
residential component appropriately blended into larger scale buildings that would otherwise be 
used to support those uses independently. Mixed-use areas are intended to provide flexibility for 
the City and the development community in order to encourage innovative, unique, and 
sustainable developments. Residential uses in mixed-use developments have begun to appeal to 
seniors or younger generations. Walkable connections to shopping and dining should be key 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
 

6 
 

 
 

components of the mixed-use areas. There are two types of mixed-use - vertical and horizontal. 
Vertical mixed-use (sometimes referred to as New Urbanism) incorporates multiple uses in one 
building on different floors. For example, a building could have shops and dining on the first 
floor and residential and office on the remaining floors. Horizontal mixed-use is defined 
generally as different land uses on different lots in one area, and is not intended to be included 
with this description. 
 
Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the requested amendment to the 
FLUM. 
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM # 10- Z201003 - Zoning Change - C at 2601 Hines 
Avenue (City Council District 1).  ).  Planner Jonathan Tooley presented the case report and gave 
a Power Point presentation for a request to change the base zoning from Commercial Office 
(CO) to Commercial (C) to allow for future development at this location.  Located at 2601 Hines 
Avenue, legally described as Lots 1-3, 4A-5A, 6-8, Block D, L. Cox and C. Hines 
Resubdivision, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned Commercial Office District, 
and generally located south of Hines Avenue and west of South Great Southwest Parkway. 
Mr. Tooley stated the purpose of the request is to rezone the subject property from Commercial 
Office District (CO) to Commercial District (C). The owner will develop this property in two 
phases. The first phase will include a large commercial building that will house their business 
specializing in selling road striping supplies (Striping Service and Supply). In the second phase, 
the owner intends to build spec retail/restaurant suites along Great Southwest Parkway to attract 
economic development for the property. The owner is required to follow Article 6, 8, and 10 of 
the Unified Development Code for all future development. The owner stated that there will not be 
any outside storage, or any industrial type uses. Mr. Nelson is planning to replat the property into 
two lots to correspond with each phase of the project.  

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.  

 
Walter Nelson 3012 Hobble Ct. Grand Prairie TX., stepped forward representing the case, he said 
client is wishing to develop property as soon as possible. Phase 1 building will be in less than a 
year and hope to have a building permit by January, Phase 2 building permit possible April. Phase 
1 to open Sept. 2021 and Phase 2 six months later. 
 
Commissioner Moser asked what does the other business on the aerial map do. Mr. Nelson stated 
the Sargent family owns another company called Striping Service and Supply and it’s a retail 
operation. Mr. Moser asked will that company take up all of the building in Phase 1. Mr. Nelson 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
 

7 
 

 
 

stated yes they are taking 20,000 sq. ft. Ms. Moser asked will Phase 2 be all rentals. Mr. Nelson 
stated yes.  
 
Commissioner Coleman wanted to thank the Sargent family for investing their money in Grand 
Prairie. 
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Coleman moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case CPA201001 and Z201003 per staff recommendations.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Coleman 
Second:  Smith                           
Ayes: Connor, Moser, Spare, Perez, Smith, Landrum, Coleman, Fedorko, Hedin 
Nays: none 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM # 11- SU201001 - Specific Use Permit - Marshal Renee 
Construction (City Council District 1). Chief City Planner Savannah Ware presented the case 
report and gave a Power Point presentation for a Specific Use Permit for a Contractor's Shop 
with Outside Storage.  Lot 1, Block 1, Zac's Ridge Conference Center, City of Grand Prairie, 
Dallas County, Texas, zoned LI, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 
1771 Robinson Rd. 
 
Ms. Ware stated the applicant is operating a Contractor’s Shop with Outside Storage at 1771 
Robinson Rd.  A Contractor’s Shop with Outside Storage requires a Specific Use Permit when 
located within a Corridor Overlay District or within 300 ft. of residential zoning.  A Specific Use 
Permit is required at this location because the subject property is within the SH-161 Corridor 
Overlay District and adjacent to properties zoned Multi-Family One. The purpose of the Specific 
Use Permit process is to identify those uses which might be appropriate within a zoning district, but 
due to either their location, functional or operational nature, could have potentially negative impact 
upon surrounding properties; and to provide for a procedure whereby such uses might be permitted 
by further restricting or conditioning them so as to eliminate such probable negative impacts. 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant shall submit final record drawings to the Engineering Division for processing 
and final acceptance before a Certificate of Occupancy will be released. 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
 

8 
 

 
 

2. The applicant shall schedule and pass any remaining inspections with the Building Inspections 
Division before a Certificate of Occupancy will be released. 

3. The applicant shall obtain a Certificate of Occupancy within 30 days of City Council approval 
of this request. 

4. The applicant shall obtain City Council approval of a Site Plan for any additional construction 
or future expansion. 

5. The applicant shall provide and install landscaping that meets current Appendix F standards 
within six months of City Council approval of the SUP. 

6. The applicant shall make any driveway and roadway improvements needed to handle 
expanded business operations.  Transportation Department and Public Works Department will 
assess future expansion and determine requirements upon the formal submittal of the Site Plan 
development request. 

7. The applicant shall post on-site signage to prevent heavy trucks from turning right to exit the 
site and travel northbound on Robinson Rd to connect to SH-161. 

8. Heavy trucks shall use W Marshall Rd to connect to SH-161. 

9. Any storage of materials under powerlines is prohibited. 

10. Permanent screening of outside storage shall meet requirements in the Unified Development 
Code. 

11. The area used for outside storage shall not exceed what is allowed by the UDC. 

 

Commissioner Fedorko stated only thing that is concerning is he comes from a district where they 
approved warehouses and even with the no trucking signs, the truck drivers ignore them which is 
concerning for people who live around there. Ms. Ware stated the conditions with be in the Specific 
Use Permit like the signage and have to go south onto Marshall to get onto 161 hwy. As part of 
the SUP process all cases are brought back in one year for evaluation to make sure they are meeting 
will all of the conditions staff recommended. So if city staff observes trucks going north and get 
complaints those will be violations of SUP and while evaluating if there is considerable amount of 
traffic not meeting those conditions it could be grounds of relocation of the SUP. Mr. Fedorko 
asked has anyone ever been revoked of their SUP in the city. Ms. Ware stated there has been some 
SUP’s revoked for violating the conditions placed by the planning staff.  
 
Owner, Adam Spears from Marshall Renee Contraction, 502 Bottom St. Grand Prairie Tx., stepped 
forward representing the case, he stated all of his truck drivers are hourly employees and they will 
all be under his control.  
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
 

9 
 

 
 

Commissioner Moser wanted to make sure he understood if his employees break the rules they 
will get fired. Mr. Spear stated yes sir.  
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Coleman moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case SU201001 per staff recommendations.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Coleman 
Second: Landrum                            
Ayes: Connor, Moser, Spare, Perez, Smith, Landrum, Coleman, Fedorko, Hedin 
Nays: none 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried. 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM # 12- Z201002 - Zoning Change - LI at 1303 W Hunter 
Ferrell Rd (City Council District 1).  Senior Planner Charles Lee presented the case report and 
gave a Power Point presentation for a Requested Zoning Change from PD-10 (Mobile Home 
Park) to Light Industrial (LI) district for an industrial development with a 610,000 sq. ft. 
warehouse/distribution facility.  A 10.667-acre tract of land in the I. Jennings Survey, Abstract 
No. 679, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-10 (Mobile Home Park), 
generally located southwest of Hunter Ferrell Road and MacArthur Blvd, and addressed as 1303 
Hunter Ferrell Road. 
 
Mr. Lee stated the purpose for the request is to rezone 10.667 acres from Planned Development-
10 (PD-10) allowing for a Mobile Home Park to Light Industrial (LI) zoning district to construct 
a 610,000 SF warehouse facility.  The 10.6-acre site is located less than 300 feet from the Trinity 
(West Fork) Riverbank.  The site is sparely vegetated with a slight depression towards the center 
and gradually sloping to the southeast towards the Trinity River. A gravel roadway/access drive is 
location along the southern portion of the tract serving an array of commercial communication 
towers (Broadcast Works Addition) located approximately 700 feet to the southwest.  The site is 
located entirely within the floodplain and the applicant has been working with the City of Grand 
Prairie’s Floodplain Administrator as well as US Army Corp of Engineers in obtaining permits to 
develop the property.  Those include the granting of a CDC permit and in the process of (CLOMR) 
Conditional Letter of Map Revision approval regarding the floodplain area of request. 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval subject to: 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
 

10 
 

 
 

 Engineering final approval of associated floodplain and CLOMR permits. 

 City of Grand Prairie’s and City of Irving’s Transportation Engineering associated permits 
related to improvements along MacArthur Boulevard. 

Commissioner Smith asked is FEMA giving this project any incentive or grants. Mr. Lee stated he 
is not aware of any.  

Applicant Robert Baldwin, 3904 Elm St. Suite B Dallas Tx., stepped forward representing the case, 
he stated this is a great location for this project and asks for the commissioners’ support.  

 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Coleman moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case Z201002 per staff recommendations.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Coleman 
Second:  Smith                           
Ayes: Connor, Moser, Spare, Perez, Smith, Landrum, Coleman, Fedorko, Hedin 
Nays: none 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried. 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM # 13- TA201001 - Text Amendment - Appendix O - 
Hospital District. Chief City Planner Savannah Ware presented the case report and gave a Power 
Point presentation for a Text Amendment to Appendix O: Hospital District of the Unified 
Development Code to add Funeral Home to the list of permissible uses. 
 
Ms. Ware stated the purpose of this request is to add “Funeral Home” to the list of permissible 
uses in Appendix O: Hospital District.  The Hospital District is located immediately east of the 
common corporate boundary line for the City of Grand Prairie and the City of Arlington, south of 
Sherman St.  The purpose of the Hospital District is to create a single area in which the physical 
and mental health needs of the citizenry can be accommodated in a comprehensive fashion with 
support facilities that complement the health care land uses. This request will add “Funeral Home” 
to Section 7.3.3: Permitted Principal Uses. 

 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
 

11 
 

 
 

There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case TA201001.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Moser 
Second:  Spare                           
Ayes: Connor, Moser, Spare, Perez, Smith, Landrum, Coleman, Fedorko, Hedin 
Nays: none 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried. 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM # 14- TA201002 - Accessory Structure Text Amendment 
– Amendment to Article 6 Density and Dimensional Requirements of the Unified Development 
Code; Planning Director Rashad Jackson presented the case report and gave a Power Point 
presentation for an ordinance amending Article 6 Section 6 Accessory Structures, and all related 
sections, to amend development regulations for accessory structure size, height and allowed 
exterior materials. 
 
Mr. Jackson stated Grand Prairie has seen an increase in the number of variance requests for 
accessory structures and detached garages. The requests have been focused primarily on size, 
height and exterior material exceptions.  Over the last two years, approximately 34% of Zoning 
Board of Adjustment request stemmed from accessory structure variances (see Attachment 1 
table). From a planning and development standpoint, significant and routine variance requests for 
regulations usually means the regulation should be amended.  Staff has proposed an amendment 
to address the significant number of requests in order to reduce resident and staff time for such 
matters.  The proposed amendments will streamline staff review of accessory structure requests 
and allow for more administrative approvals.  The amendments will also put the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) in line with House Bill 2439 which prohibits the ability to require 
specific exterior materials on principle or accessory structures.  

 
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Hedin moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case TA201002.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
 

12 
 

 
 

Motion: Hedin   
Second: Moser                             
Ayes: Connor, Moser, Spare, Perez, Smith, Landrum, Coleman, Fedorko, Hedin 
Nays: none 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM # 15- TA201003 - Hybrid Housing Text Amendment – 
Amend Residential Development Standards of the Unified Development Code to establish 
development and design standards for hybrid housing or build to rent residential development; An 
ordinance amending Appendix W Residential Development Standards; Article 4 Permissible Uses; 
Article 10 Parking and Loading Standards and Article 30 Definitions of the Unified Development 
Code. Planning Director Rashad Jackson presented the case report and gave a Power Point 
presentation for Hybrid housing, also known as build-to-rent homes, combines elements of 
traditional single family and multi-family development.  It typically includes a mix of attached and 
detached single-story units available for rent on a single lot.  Maintenance of individual units, 
common areas and landscaping is the responsibility of a single entity. Over the last few months, 
the city has seen an increase in interest from developers wanted to construct hybrid housing.  The 
Unified Development Code does not contain development standards specific to this style 
development.  Previous hybrid housing developments have been allowed to develop under 
multifamily development requirements.  The resulting developments have caused design concerns 
from staff and Council members. 

Mr. Jackson stated as noted, staff recommends using the Townhouse design criteria as a basis for 
all hybrid housing development.  Hybrid housing will be included in the Appendix W Townhouse 
Amenity, Design & Parking standards. The use, SF- Hybrid Housing (Build To Rent), will be 
added to Article 4 Permissible Uses.   The use will be allowed under the SF - Townhouse zoning 
district.  Hybrid housing planned developments will be required to use townhouse zoning as its 
base zoning district as well.   

Most developers only implement the single-family unit as the “hybrid” aspect of the development 
with multifamily zoning used as the base zoning district.  The increased density and typical site 
layout allowed for multifamily development can create design and function issues (access, parking, 
orientation) when trying to incorporate single family units.  The goal would be to require additional 
single-family design and function elements to truly make a “hybrid” design that accommodates 
single family development.  

Using the townhouse zoning designation for this use will also set a reasonable density baseline for 
proposed development as opposed to using the multifamily zoning designation.  Staff also feels 
the townhouse amenity and design standard requirements will create developments more in line 
with other single-family developments.   



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
 

13 
 

 
 

The proposed amendment will allow for:  

• More Townhouse Derived product 

• Use of the existing Townhouse Amenity, Design & Parking standards set forth in Appendix 
W of the UDC.  Simple way to regulate using existing design standards. 

• Opportunity for Individual / Independent Access for each unit. 

• Better building orientation.  The Townhouse access and design standards address building 
orientation issues. 

• Open space standards in line with Appendix W requirements. 

• Proper ROW Screening / Landscape Buffers in accordance with existing Appendix W 
standards 

 

Chairperson Connor asked is townhouse concept free standing structure with garage. Mr. Jackson 
stated townhouses requires garage direct access and developers may request variations.  

 
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Spare moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case TA201003 per staff recommendations.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Spare  
Second: Coleman                            
Ayes: Connor, Moser, Spare, Perez, Smith, Landrum, Coleman, Fedorko, Hedin 
Nays: none 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried. 
 
Commissioner Moser moved to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________  
Shawn Connor, Chairperson  
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, OCTOBER 26, 2020 
 

14 
 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________  
Cheryl Smith, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An audio recording of this meeting is available on request at 972-237-8255. 
 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10559 Name: P201102 - I-30 MacArthur Business Center Addition,
Lot 1, Block 3

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:11/2/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/9/2020

Title: P201102 - Final Plat - I-30 MacArthur Business Center Addition, Lot 1, Block 3 (City Council District
5).  Final Plat for Lot 1 Block 3, I-30/MacArthur Business Center Addition, creating one lot on 6.033
acres.  Tract 27.4 and Tract 27.5, Joseph Graham Survey, Abstract No. 506, City of Grand prairie,
Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-41, within the IH-30 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located
on the southwest corner of the IH-30 frontage road and N Bagdad Rd.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A P201102 Location Map

Exhibit B P201102 Exhibit B FP I-30 MacArthur Business Center Blk 3, Lot 1

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
P201102 - Final Plat - I-30 MacArthur Business Center Addition, Lot 1, Block 3 (City Council District 5).
Final Plat for Lot 1 Block 3, I-30/MacArthur Business Center Addition, creating one lot on 6.033 acres.  Tract
27.4 and Tract 27.5, Joseph Graham Survey, Abstract No. 506, City of Grand prairie, Dallas County, Texas,
zoned PD-41, within the IH-30 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the southwest corner of the
IH-30 frontage road and N Bagdad Rd.

Presenter
Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:
Final Plat of Lot 1 Block 3, I-30/MacArthur Business Center Addition, creating one industrial lot on 6.033
acres. Tract 27.4 and Tract 27.5, Joseph Graham Survey, Abstract No. 506, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, zoned Planned Development-41 (PD-41) District, within the I-30 Corridor Overlay District, and
generally located on the southwest corner of the I-30 Service Road and N Bagdad Rd.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10559, Version: 1

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Final Plat is to create one industrial lot on 6.033 acres to facilitate development at this
location.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North LI Warehouse (Under Construction)

South PD-41 & SF-4 TXDPS Office & Single-Family
Residential

West SF-4 Single Family Residential

East PD-41 Warehouse (MacArthur Crossing)

HISTORY:

· Planned Development-41 (PD-41) was established in the 1950’s. PD-41 allows for light industrial
related uses and office/warehouse uses by-right.

· April 21, 2020: City Council approved a Site Plan for five office/warehouses on 16.944 acres (Case
Number S200301).

· October 12, 2020: The Planning & Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat for I-30 MacArthur
Business Center Addition, creating five lots on 16.94 acres (Case Number P201002).

PLAT FEATURES:

The Final Plat establishes fire lane, access, and utility easements for Lot 1, Block 3. The plat depicts an
existing billboard tract, utility and visibility easements.

The property is zoned PD-41 for industrial uses and must meet the density and dimensional requirements for
the Light Industrial (LI) District.  The following table summarizes these requirements.

Table 2: Summary of Density and Dimensional Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

 Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 262,792 Yes

  Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 718 Yes

  Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 380 Yes

  Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



E Ih 30 Eb  

E Ih 30 Wb  

N 
Ba

gd
ad

 R
d

Gifford St

Ne
 23

rd
 St

´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

§̈¦30

CASE LOCATION MAP
P201102 - Final PlatI-30/MacArthur Business CenterAddition, Lot 1, Block 3

EXHIBIT A - LOCATION MAP 
    PAGE 1 OF 1



EXHIBIT B - FINAL PLAT 
   PAGE 1 OF 1



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10560 Name: P201103 - Hamilton Bardin Village Addition

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:11/2/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/9/2020

Title: P201103 - Preliminary Plat - Hamilton Bardin Village (City Council District 4).  Preliminary Plat for
Hamilton Bardin Village, Lots 1-6, Block 3R, creating six lots on 21.803 acres.  Sheffield Village
Addition Phase 4, 5, and 6, Block 3, Lot B, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-
395, within the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, generally located south of I-20, east of SH-360, and
north of Bardin Rd, and addressed as 3025 W I-20.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
P201103 - Preliminary Plat - Hamilton Bardin Village (City Council District 4).  Preliminary Plat for Hamilton
Bardin Village, Lots 1-6, Block 3R, creating six lots on 21.803 acres.  Sheffield Village Addition Phase 4, 5,
and 6, Block 3, Lot B, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-395, within the SH-360 Corridor
Overlay District, generally located south of I-20, east of SH-360, and north of Bardin Rd, and addressed as
3025 W I-20.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Preliminary Plat for Hamilton Bardin Village, Lots 1-6, Block 3R, creating six lots on 21.803 acres. Sheffield
Village Addition Phase 4, 5, and 6, Block 3, Lot B, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-
395, within the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, generally located south of I-20, east of SH-360, and north of
Bardin Rd, and addressed as 3025 W I-20.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Preliminary Plat is to create six lots on 21.803 acres to facilitate development of Hamilton
Bardin Village, a horizontal mixed-use development. The Site Plan for Phase One of this development is under
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10560, Version: 1

Bardin Village, a horizontal mixed-use development. The Site Plan for Phase One of this development is under
concurrent review (Case Number S201101).

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-37A; PD-327 Light Industrial, Commercial, Retail

South PD-140 Medical Offices, Multi-Family

PD-140B Undeveloped

West City Limits City Limits

East PD-140 Concorde Career College; Church

PLAT FEATURES:

The plat depicts the necessary utility and access easements and meets the applicable dimensional standards.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the condition that the plat adheres to
the standards set forth in the UDC and the following:

1. The applicant shall establish easements by a separate instrument for the off-site improvements that will
be constructed with Phase One but not final platted with Phase One. The recording information for the
easements shall be shown on the final plat for Phase One.

2. The final plat shall provide a 15 ft. utility easement along all street frontages.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



W Ih 20 Eb  

W Ih 20 Wb  

W Bardin Rd

Mag
na

Ca
rta

Bl
vd

´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

§̈¦20

CASE LOCATION MAP
P201103 - Preliminary PlatHamilton Bardin Village, Lots 1-6,Block 3R

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



AREA TABLE

LOT SF ACRES

DETAIL

1

CURVE TABLE

CURVE DELTA RADIUS LENGTH TANGENTCHORD BEARINGCHORD

LINE TABLE

LINE BEARINGLENGTH

DETAIL

2

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

T
-
 
 
H

A
M

I
L

T
O

N
 
B

A
R

D
I
N

 
V

I
L

L
A

G
E

 
L

O
T

S
 
1

-
6
,
 
B

L
O

C
K

 
3

R

VICINITY MAP

COUNTY

MAPSCO

PROJECT   LOCATION

TARRANT

F98-Q

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat 
Page 1 of 2



PRELIMINARY

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
P

L
A

T
-
 
 
H

A
M

I
L

T
O

N
 
B

A
R

D
I
N

 
V

I
L

L
A

G
E

 
L

O
T

S
 
1

-
6
,
 
B

L
O

C
K

 
3

R

“ ” 

“

“ 

“ ” 

“ ” 

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat 
Page 2 of 2



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10561 Name: P201104 - Heritage Towne

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:11/2/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/9/2020

Title: P201104 - Preliminary Plat - Heritage Towne (City Council District 6).  Preliminary Plat for the
multifamily and commercial portions of Heritage Towne, a mixed use development located along SH-
360 and HWY 287. The plat includes 6 lots covering 37.324 acres. Located at 2925 Davis Drive,
legally described as Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County,
Texas, zoned PD-399 District. Generally located north of Hwy 287 and east of HWY 360.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title

P201104 - Preliminary Plat - Heritage Towne (City Council District 6).  Preliminary Plat for the multifamily and
commercial portions of Heritage Towne, a mixed use development located along SH-360 and HWY 287. The plat
includes 6 lots covering 37.324 acres. Located at 2925 Davis Drive, legally described as Joseph Lawrence Survey,
Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas, zoned PD-399 District. Generally located north of
Hwy 287 and east of HWY 360.

Presenter
Jonathan Tooley, Planner

Recommended
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

A preliminary plat for the multifamily and commercial portions of Heritage Towne, a mixed use development
located along SH-360 and HWY 287. The plat includes 6 lots covering 37.324 acres. Located at 2925 Davis
Drive, legally described as Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County,
Texas, zoned PD-399 District.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10561, Version: 1

The purpose of the Preliminary Plat is to subdivide multiple survey tracts into 6 platted lots for multi-family,
commercial, and open spaces uses. The developer is designing the site plan for the multi-family at this time,
along with commercial uses. Lot 2, Block J, is intended for the future fire station that will service the south
sector of the City. Mr. DeBaun wants to donate this lot to the City. There are approximately 28 acres planned
for development as Multi-Family Three, 6.6 acres as General Retail, and 3 acres as open space.

The applicant has submitted a development application for a Planned Development amendment, which is
running concurrent to this case (Z200401A). The current Planned Development - 399 District does not permit
commercial uses north of Eva Mae Boulevard. The applicant is seeking to have this amended, bringing the plat
into concurrency with the zoning.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-322A Single -Family Residences

South Agriculture; ETJ Residential, Commercial, Cemetery

East Agriculture Undeveloped

West Agriculture Undeveloped

DENSITY AND DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS:

The lots meet the density and dimensional requirements required in Article 6 of the Unified Development Code.

Table 2: Summary of Lot Requirements - Multi-Family (MF-3)

Standard Required Meets?

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 12,000 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 120 Yes

Maximum Height (Ft.) 60 Yes

Table 3: Summary of Lot Requirements - Commercial

StandardRequiredMeet
s?

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 20,000 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 Yes

Maximum Height (Ft.) 50 N/A

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10561, Version: 1

HISTORY:

· Planned Development Amendment application for Heritage Towne to allow additional commercial
zoning fronting Davis Drive is under concurrent review (Case Number Z200401A).

· August 24, 2020: Planning and Zoning Commission approved a preliminary plat for Heritage Towne -
single-family portion (Case Number P200801).

· April 21, 2020: City Council approved a zoning change and concept plan creating Planned
Development-399 District for single-family, multi-family, and general retail uses (Case Number
Z200401).

PLAT FEATURES:

The multi-family and commercial tracts will be accessible from Davis Drive and the two proposed public right
of ways, Heritage Towne / Eva Mae Boulevard. The multi-family zoning district allows for a density of 26
units per acre. The plat meets density and dimensional requirements in the UDC. The applicant is dedicating 25
feet of right-of-way along Davis Drive to meet current City standards. Mr. Debaun has submitted the TIA to
staff, and once the review is complete, additional right-of-way may need to be dedicated depending on the
anticipated flow of traffic. The finalizing of right-of-way dedication and TIA requirements to be addressed
before the final platting.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with conditions:

· Approval of the Planned Development - 399 District amendment, reduce the Multi-Family Three and
enlarge General Retail zoning along Davis Drive.

· The applicant shall address Transportation Department comments and finalize the TIA before
submitting a devopment application for the final plat.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Double Oak Av

´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand PrairieCASE LOCATION MAP
P201104 - Heritage Towne
Preliminary Plat

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



B A N N I S T E R 
E N G I N E E R I N G

240 North Mitchell Road Mansfield, TX 76063 817.842.2094 817.842.2095 fax

TBPLS REGISTRATION NO. 10193823

B
:
\
C
l
i
e
n
t
s
\
1
1
6
 
(
A
e
r
o
f
i
r
m

a
 
C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
)
\
1
1
6
-
2
0
-
0
0
6
 
(
P
l
a
t
t
i
n
g
 
-
 
H

e
r
i
t
a
g
e
 
T
o
w

n
e
 
R
e
m

a
i
n
d
e
r
)
\
S
u
r
v
e
y
\
1
1
6
-
2
0
-
0
0
6
 
S
u
r
v
e
y
 
B
a
s
e
.
d
w

g

1
0
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
0
 
8
:
5
4
:
3
5
 
A
M

Case SD# P201104

PRELIMINARY PLAT - for Inspection Purposes only

HERITAGE TOWNE
Being Tract 1 (10.883 acres), Tract 2 (19.617

acres) and Tract 3 (6.824 acres) out of the

Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract Number 616

City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas

3 Retail Lots, 2 Multi-Family-3 Lots & 1 Open Space Lot

Preparation Date: September 2020

Revision Date: October 2020

SHEET 1 OF 5

ENGINEER / SURVEYOR:

BANNISTER ENGINEERING, LLC

240 NORTH MITCHELL ROAD

MANSFIELD, TEXAS 76063

CONTACT: MICHAEL DAVIS, RPLS

PHONE: 817-842-2094

Mike@bannistereng.com

OWNER / DEVELOPER:

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

2935 SOUTH BELTLINE ROAD

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS 75052

CONTACT: CHASE DEBAUN

PHONE: 972-263-6796

chase@aerofirmaoffice.com

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS

D

A

V

I

S

 

R

O

A

D

St Paul

Cemetery

SITE

287

287

661

KEY MAP
SCALE: 1" = 150'

360

SHEET 2

SHEET 3

SHEET 4

GENERAL NOTES:

1. All bearings shown herein are Texas State Plane Coordinate System, NAD83 (2011), Texas North

Central Zone (4202) and are relative to the City of Grand Prairie GPS Control System.  All distances

shown herein are surface distances.

2. According to surveyor's interpretation of information shown on the National Flood Insurance

Program (NFIP) “Flood Insurance Rate Map” (FIRM), Community Panel No. 48139C0025F, dated

June 3, 2013. The property appears to lie within Zone “X”, defined as “Areas determined to be outside

the 0.2% annual chance floodplain” zone and within Zone "A", defined as "No Based Flood Elevations

Determined." zone as defined by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Federal

Insurance Administration, or the Federal Emergency Management Agency.

The subject property is located within the 1% annual chance (100-year floodplain) per FEMA FIRM Map

#48139C0025F, in Ellis County, dated June 3, 2013.

The subject property is not located within the 100 year flood plain per FIRM Panel # 48139C0025F,

dated June 3, 2013. Where applicable and prior to construction, submit certification by a professional

that site does not have wetlands and other waters of the United States, an investigation showing that

site development will not impact wetlands and other waters of the United States, or a permit for

proposed activities in wetlands and other waters of the United States. Wetlands and other waters of the

United States are as defined in Section 404 of the Clean Water Act. All delineation's shall certify that they

were conducted per U.S. Army Corps of Engineers' requirements. An agreement stipulating that the

owner is responsible for maintenance of any wetland mitigation areas is required prior to construction.

The above referenced “FIRM” map is for use in administering the “NFIP”; it does not necessarily show all

areas subject to flooding, particularly from local sources of small size, which could be flooded by severe,

concentrated rainfall coupled with inadequate local drainage systems. There may be other

streams, creeks, low areas, drainage systems or other surface or subsurface conditions existing on or

near the subject property which are not studied or addressed as a part of the “NFIP”.

3. All lot corners (Original Monumentation) shall be iron rods set and/or found (IRS and/or

IRF) are 5/8-inch with a red plastic cap stamped “RPLS 4838”.

4. Existing or future minimum set-backs established by City Ordinance shall take precedence over

building lines indicated on this plat.

5. Ownership references shown hereon are based on the Ellis County Appraisal District's web page data

(www.elliscad.org).

6. The property is currently Zoned Planned Development No. 399, Case No. Z200401.

Zoning classifications indicated on this plat reflect the zoning in place at the time this plat was approved

and does not represent a vested right to the zoning indicated.

7. SOURCE BENCHMARK: City of Grand Prairie Monument 68, being a top security rod monument with

aluminum cap stamped "GPS 68" found in well with aluminum access cover located on the West side of

FM Road 661, 6.6 feet off the edge of asphalt pavement, 160'+/- South of Lakeview Drive.

Elevation = 539.85'

8. Private streets and alleys must be constructed and maintained by the property owners association.

Private streets must conform to the City's standards for Public Street and alley right-of-way.  An

easement covering the street lot shall be granted to the City providing unrestricted use of the property

for utilities and storm drainage systems and the maintenance of the same.  This right shall extend to all

utility providers including telephone/cable companies, operating within the City.  The easement shall also

provide the City with the right of access for any purpose related to the exercise of a governmental

service or function, including but not limited to fire and police protection, inspection and code

enforcement.  The easement shall permit the City to remove any vehicle or obstacle within the street lot

that impairs emergency access.  Variation to streets and right-of-way widths must be approved by the

City Planning and Zoning Commission.

9. The purpose of this plat is to divide land for development.

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE:

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That I, Michael Dan Davis, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor, do hereby certify that this plat was

prepared from an actual and accurate survey of the land and that the corner monuments shown hereon

were or shall be properly placed under my personal supervision, in accordance with the platting rules and

regulations of the City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas.

______________________________________________

Michael Dan Davis DATE:
Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 4838
BANNISTER ENGINEERING, LLC
T.B.P.L.S. REGISTRATION NO. 10193823

State of Texas       §

County of Tarrant  §

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Michael Dan Davis, known to me

to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he

executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed and in the capacity therein

stated.

Given under my hand and seal of office this _____ day of _______________________, 2020.

________________________________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

My Commission expires:______________________________

MICHAEL DAN DAVIS
4838

ST

ATE
OF TEXAS

LAND SURVE
YO

R

R

E
G
I S T E R

E

D

P
R

O
FE S S I O

N

A
L

PRELIMINARY,

THIS DOCUMENT SHALL NOT BE

RECORDED FOR ANY PURPOSE AND SHALL NOT BE

USED OR VIEWED OR RELIED UPON AS A FINAL

SURVEY DOCUMENT

P

R

E

L

I

M

I

N

A

R

Y

H

E

R

I

T

A

G

E

 

T

O

W

N

E

 

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D

H

E

R

I

T

A

G

E

 

T

O

W

N

E

 

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D

W

I

L

L

I

A

M

 

C

O

U

R

T

O

R

A

N

 
L
A

N

E

O

R

A

N

 
L
A

N

E

E

V

A

 

M

A

E

 

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D

E

V

A

 

M

A

E

 

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D

E

V

A

 

M

A

E

 

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D

R

O

C

H

E

L

L

E

 

C

O

U

R

T

R

A

N

D

A

L

L

 

T

E

R

R

A

C

E

R

A

N

D

A

L

L

 

T

E

R

R

A

C

E

T

R

A

C

T

 

1

T

R

A

C

T

 

2

T

R

A

C

T

 

3

Exhibit B- Preliminary Plat
Page 1 of 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.: 116-20-006

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
N   NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
S   SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
E   EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W   WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%D    DEGREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
'    MINUTES/FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
"    SECONDS/INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED RECORDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT RECORDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
= STREET NAME CHANGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



E

x

.

O

H

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x
.
 
W

L

E

x
.
 
W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P
r
o
p
.
 
W

L
P
r
o
p
.
 
W

L

E

x

.

2

4

"

W

L

E

x

.

2

4

"

W

L

E

x

.

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

8

"

W

L

POND

UTILITY VAULT

UTILITY VAULT

TEXDEVCO GP LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 1900187

O.P.R.E.C.T.

WM SUB GT, LP

VOLUME 2805, PAGE 57

D.R.E.C.T.

1

3

5

'

 

T

A

R

R

A

N

T

 

R

E

G

I

O

N

A

L

W

A

T

E

R

 

D

I

S

T

R

I

C

T

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

V

O

L

U

M

E

 

2

7

5

3

,

 

P

A

G

E

 

2

1

8

4

D

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

T

E

M

P

O

R

A

R

Y

 

C

O

N

S

T

R

U

C

T

I

O

N

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

1

6

1

4

1

3

4

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

5

0

'

 

L

O

N

E

 

S

T

A

R

 

G

A

S

 

C

O

M

P

A

N

Y

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

V

O

L

U

M

E

 

5

6

6

,

 

P

A

G

E

 

1

1

3

0

D

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

DFW MIDSTREAM

SERVICES, LLC EASEMENT

VOLUME 2458, PAGE 2439

D.R.E.C.T.

50' DFW MIDSTREAM SERVICES, LLC EASEMENT

VOLUME 2436, PAGE 123

D.R.E.C.T.

150' TEXAS ELECTRIC SERVICE

COMPANY EASEMENT

VOLUME 557, PAGE 50

D.R.E.C.T.

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE WATER MAIN EASEMENT

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 1815292

O.P.R.E.C.T.

25' TEMPORARY

CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

VOLUME 2436, PAGE 123

D.R.E.C.T.

DFW MIDSTREAM

SERVICES, LLC

EASEMENT

VOLUME 2458,

PAGE 2433

D.R.E.C.T.

BLOCK G

BLOCK A

IRF

FOUND CONCRETE

MONUMENT

FOUND CONCRETE MONUMENT

2

2

.

0

6

'

FOUND CONCRETE MONUMENT

FOUND MAG NAIL

WILLIAM TELFORD AND WIFE,

KAY TELFORD

VOLUME 738, PAGE 371

D.R.E.C.T.

REMAINDER OF

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2011127

O.P.R.E.C.T.

REMAINDER OF

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2011127

O.P.R.E.C.T.

H

E

R

I

T

A

G

E

 

T

O

W

N

E

 

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D

V

A

R

I

A

B

L

E

 

W

I

D

T

H

 

R

I

G

H

T

-

O

F

-

W

A

Y

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

,

 

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

2

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

A

L

L

E

Y

2

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

A

L

L

E

Y

2

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

A

L

L

E

Y

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

A

L

L

E

Y

2

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

A

L

L

E

Y

H

E

R

I

T

A

G

E

 

T

O

W

N

E

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D

5

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

,

L

O

T

 

1

X

,

 

B

L

O

C

K

 

H

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

,

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

2

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

A

L

L

E

Y

2

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

A

L

L

E

Y

E

V

A

 

M

A

E

 

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D

5

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

L

O

T

 

2

X

,

 

B

L

O

C

K

 

H

W

I

L

L

I

A

M

 

C

O

U

R

T

5

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

W

I

L

L

I

A

M

 

C

O

U

R

T

5

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

L

O

T

 

3

X

,

 

B

L

O

C

K

 

H

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

L

A

W

R

E

N

C

E

 

S

U

R

V

E

Y

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

6

1

6

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

5

0

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

1

5

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

2

0

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

2

0

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

2

0

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

1

5

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

 

&

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

2

5

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

1

5

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

1

5

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

 

&

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

1

0

8

"

 

W

A

T

E

R

 

L

I

N

E

1

8

"

 

W

A

T

E

R

 

L

I

N

E

E

x

.

G

A

S

E

x

.

G

A

S

E

x

.

G

A

S

E

x

.

G

A

S

E

x

.

G

A

S

E

x

.

G

A

S

E

x

.

G

A

S

E

x

.

G

A

S

BLOCK A

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 12

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 5

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 1X

OPEN

SPACE

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11

15' UTILITY

EASEMENT

15' UTILITY

EASEMENT

P

E

R

M

A

N

E

N

T

 

W

A

T

E

R

 

L

I

N

E

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

1

6

1

4

1

3

3

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

BLOCK A

BLOCK

B

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

LOT 57X

BLOCK A

5' FENCE

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

B

E

G

I

N

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

S

T

R

E

E

T

E

N

D

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

R

I

G

H

T

-

O

F

-

W

A

Y

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

L

O

T

 

5

7

X

L

O

T

 

5

7

X

IRF

N88° 48' 33"W  11.59'

S73° 15' 41"W  75.77'

S51° 37' 46"W  48.83'

S

7

3

°

 

1

5

'

 

4

1

"

W

 

 

2

6

1

.

8

9

'

D=12°43'37"

R=780.00'

L=173.26'

CB=S66°53'53"W

CL=172.90'

S60° 32' 04"W  76.45'

S73° 03' 39"W  46.11'

N74° 29' 25"W  10.38'

N

6

4

°

 

0

5

'

 

2

2

"

E

 

 

2

7

5

.

2

1

'

N

2

9

°

 

2

6

'

 

5

0

"

W

 

 

8

2

3

.

3

8

'

N

6

4

°

 

2

3

'

 

1

5

"

E

 

 

6

1

0

.

4

6

'

S

2

1

°

 

5

5

'

 

1

9

"

E

 

 

8

8

2

.

1

7

'

N48° 00' 12"E  46.09'

D=12°43'37"

R=720.00'

L=159.93'

CB=N66°53'53"E

CL=159.60'

N

7

3

°

 

1

5

'

 

4

1

"

E

 

 

4

0

0

.

8

3

'

LOT 1

10.884 ACRES OR

474,090 SQUARE FEET

BLOCK I

LOT 1

16.781 ACRES OR

730,983 SQUARE FEET

BLOCK J

PLACE OF

BEGINNING

TRACT 1

S

6

0

°

 

3

2

'

 

0

4

"

W

 

 

8

0

.

0

0

'

3

6

.

4

3

'

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

L

A

W

R

E

N

C

E

 

S

U

R

V

E

Y

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

6

1

6

WILLIAM TELFORD

AND WIFE,

KAY TELFORD

VOLUME 738, PAGE 371

D.R.E.C.T.

TEXDEVCO GP LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 1900187

O.P.R.E.C.T.

T

E

M

P

O

R

A

R

Y

 

C

O

N

S

T

R

U

C

T

I

O

N

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

1

6

1

4

1

3

4

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

1

3

5

'

 

T

A

R

R

A

N

T

 

R

E

G

I

O

N

A

L

W

A

T

E

R

 

D

I

S

T

R

I

C

T

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

V

O

L

U

M

E

 

2

7

5

3

,

 

P

A

G

E

 

2

1

8

4

D

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

HERITAGE TOWNE

INSTRUMENT NUMBER

________________

O.P.R.E.C.T.

HERITAGE TOWNE

INSTRUMENT NUMBER

________________

O.P.R.E.C.T.

1

0

'

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

N

6

0

°

 

3

2

'

 

0

4

"

E

 

 

7

6

.

4

0

'

3

0

.

0

0

'

3

0

.

0

0

'

3

0

.

0

0

'

3

0

.

0

0

'

3

9

.

0

0

'

3

9

.

0

0

'

5

0

.

0

0

'

7

8

.

0

0

'

6

0

.

0

0

'

6

0

.

0

0

'

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

(BY THIS PLAT)

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

(BY THIS PLAT)

B A N N I S T E R 
E N G I N E E R I N G

240 North Mitchell Road Mansfield, TX 76063 817.842.2094 817.842.2095 fax

TBPLS REGISTRATION NO. 10193823

B
:
\
C
l
i
e
n
t
s
\
1
1
6
 
(
A
e
r
o
f
i
r
m

a
 
C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
)
\
1
1
6
-
2
0
-
0
0
6
 
(
P
l
a
t
t
i
n
g
 
-
 
H

e
r
i
t
a
g
e
 
T
o
w

n
e
 
R
e
m

a
i
n
d
e
r
)
\
S
u
r
v
e
y
\
1
1
6
-
2
0
-
0
0
6
 
S
u
r
v
e
y
 
B
a
s
e
.
d
w

g

1
0
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
0
 
9
:
2
0
:
1
4
 
A
M

Case SD# P201104

PRELIMINARY PLAT - for Inspection Purposes only

HERITAGE TOWNE
Being Tract 1 (10.883 acres), Tract 2 (19.617

acres) and Tract 3 (6.824 acres) out of the

Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract Number 616

City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas

3 Retail Lots, 2 Multi-Family-3 Lots & 1 Open Space Lot

Preparation Date: September 2020

Revision Date: October 2020

SHEET 2 OF 5

ENGINEER / SURVEYOR:

BANNISTER ENGINEERING, LLC

240 NORTH MITCHELL ROAD

MANSFIELD, TEXAS 76063

CONTACT: MICHAEL DAVIS, RPLS

PHONE: 817-842-2094

Mike@bannistereng.com

OWNER / DEVELOPER:

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

2935 SOUTH BELTLINE ROAD

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS 75052

CONTACT: CHASE DEBAUN

PHONE: 972-263-6796

chase@aerofirmaoffice.com

MATCH LINE
SEE SHEET NO. 3

MATCH LINE
SEE SHEET NO. 3

Exhibit B- Preliminary Plat
Page 2 of 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.: 116-20-006

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
N   NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
S   SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
E   EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W   WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%D    DEGREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
'    MINUTES/FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
"    SECONDS/INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED RECORDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT RECORDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
= STREET NAME CHANGE



E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

X

W

O

O

D

X

W

O

O

D

X

W

O

O

D

X

W

O

O

D

X

W

O

O

D

X

W

O

O

D

X

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

PIP
E

X

PIPE

X

PIPE

X

PIPE

X

W

O

O

D

X

W

O

O

D

X

P

I

P

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

IR

E

X

P

I
P

E

X

P
I
P
E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

IR
E

X

W

IR
E

X

W

IR
E

X

W

IR
E

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR
E

X

W

IR
E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR
E

X

W

IR
E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

WIRE

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

IR

E

X

W

I
R

E

X

W

I
R

E

X

W

I
R

E

X

W

I
R

E

X

W

I
R

E

X

W

I
R

E

X

W

I
R

E

X

W

I
R

E

X

W

I
R

E

X

W

I
R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E
x
.
O

H
E

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

I

I

I

I
I

I

I

I

I

I

I
I

X

PIPE

X

P
I
P
E

X

P
I
P
E

X

P
I
P
E

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

I

I

I

I
I

I

I

I

I

I

I
I

U

G

T

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

E

x

.

T

E

L

E

POND

UTILITY VAULT

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

(TRACT 826)

(JOE POOL LAKE)

VOLUME 676, PAGE 506

D.R.E.C.T.

D

A

V

I

S

 

R

O

A

D

P

R

E

V

I

O

U

S

L

Y

 

K

N

O

W

N

 

A

S

S

T

.

 

P

A

U

L

 

B

R

I

T

T

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

V

A

R

I

A

B

L

E

 

W

I

D

T

H

 

R

I

G

H

T

-

O

F

-

W

A

Y

REMAINDER OF

JAMES EDMUND KEMP, JR., JUDY ANNE KEMP

AMONETT, CAROLYN KEMP WITTENBRAKER AND

JOHN STACY KEMP, BENEFICIARIES UNDER THE

WILL OF JAMES E. KEMP, DECEASED

VOLUME 2171, PAGE 510

D.R.E.C.T.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

(TRACT 826)

(JOE POOL LAKE)

VOLUME 676, PAGE 506

D.R.E.C.T.

FEMA ZONE "A"

(SHADED)

T

E

M

P

O

R

A

R

Y

 

C

O

N

S

T

R

U

C

T

I

O

N

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

1

6

1

4

1

3

4

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

DFW MIDSTREAM

SERVICES, LLC EASEMENT

VOLUME 2458, PAGE 2439

D.R.E.C.T.

REMAINDER OF

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2011127

O.P.R.E.C.T.

PORTION OF

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2011127

O.P.R.E.C.T.

PORTION OF

DAVIS RD

DEVELOPMENT LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER

2011127

O.P.R.E.C.T.

BLOCK E

BLOCK E

BLOCK D

BLOCK D

BLOCK F

FOUND CONCRETE MONUMENT

STAMPED "826-6"

FOUND 1/2" CAPPED IRON ROD

STAMPED "AREA SURVEYING"

FOUND 1/2" CAPPED IRON ROD

(ILLEGIBLE)

FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD

FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD

FOUND 1/2" CAPPED

IRON ROD STAMPED

"AREA SURVEYING"

FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD

FOUND 1/2" CAPPED IRON ROD

(ILLEGIBLE)

FOUND MAG NAIL

2

2

.

0

6

'

FOUND MAG NAIL

FOUND CONCRETE MONUMENT

FOUND MAG NAIL

FOUND MAG NAIL

FOUND MAG

NAIL

REMAINDER OF

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2011127

O.P.R.E.C.T.

E

V

A

 

M

A

E

 

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D

5

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

L

O

T

 

7

X

,

 

B

L

O

C

K

 

H

E

V

A

 

M

A

E

 

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D

5

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

L

O

T

 

7

X

,

 

B

L

O

C

K

 

H

E

V

A

 

M

A

E

 

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D

V

A

R

I

A

B

L

E

 

W

I

D

T

H

R

I

G

H

T

-

O

F

-

W

A

Y

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

R

O

C

H

E

L

L

E

 

C

O

U

R

T

5

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

L

O

T

 

8

X

,

 

B

L

O

C

K

 

H

2

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

A

L

L

E

Y

2

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

A

L

L

E

Y

LOT 2X

OPEN SPACE

BLOCK F

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

L

A

W

R

E

N

C

E

 

S

U

R

V

E

Y

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

6

1

6

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

L

A

W

R

E

N

C

E

 

S

U

R

V

E

Y

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

6

1

6

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

2

0

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

1

5

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

2

5

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

1

5

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

2

0

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

2

0

'

 

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

 

L

I

N

E

1

0

8

"

 

W

A

T

E

R

 

L

I

N

E

1

8

"

 

W

A

T

E

R

 

L

I

N

E

1

0

8

"

 

W

A

T

E

R

 

L

I

N

E

1

8

"

 

W

A

T

E

R

 

L

I

N

E

REMAINDER OF

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2011127

O.P.R.E.C.T.

PORTION OF

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2011127

O.P.R.E.C.T.

REMAINDER OF

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2011127

O.P.R.E.C.T.

E

x

.

G

A

S

E

x

.

G

A

S

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 12

LOT 13

LOT 14

LOT 15

LOT 16X

OPEN

SPACE

LOT 1X

OPEN

SPACE

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9X

OPEN

SPACE

15' UTILITY

EASEMENT

15' UTILITY

EASEMENT

15' UTILITY

EASEMENT

15' UTILITY

EASEMENT

15' UTILITY

EASEMENT

15' DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

LOT 3

BLOCK E

R

O

C

H

E

L

L

E

 

C

O

U

R

T

5

0

'

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

L

O

T

 

8

X

,

 

B

L

O

C

K

 

H

150' TEXAS ELECTRIC SERVICE

COMPANY EASEMENT

VOLUME 557, PAGE 50

D.R.E.C.T.

FUTURE

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

5' FENCE

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

LOT 2X

OPEN

SPACE

IRF

B

E

G

I

N

 

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

S

T

R

E

E

T

E

N

D

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

R

I

G

H

T

-

O

F

-

W

A

Y

E

V

A

 

M

A

E

 

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D

V

A

R

I

A

B

L

E

 

W

I

D

T

H

P

R

I

V

A

T

E

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

L

O

T

 

7

X

,

 

B

L

O

C

K

 

H

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

N74° 29' 25"W  10.38'

N

6

4

°

 

0

5

'

 

2

2

"

E

 

 

2

7

5

.

2

1

'

N

2

9

°

 

2

6

'

 

3

4

"

W

 

 

2

7

5

.

0

5

'

N

7

5

°

 

0

0

'
 

0

4

"

E

 

 

2

5

4

.

1

9

'

N

2

9

°

 

2

5

'

 

0

5

"

W

 

 

1

7

7

.

0

7

'

S

7

5

°

 

0

3

'
 

1

3

"

W

 

 

2

5

4

.

2

8

'

N

2

9

°

 

2

6

'

 

4

0

"

W

 

 

5

3

4

.

9

5

'

N29° 30' 55"W  144.57'

N15° 30' 35"E  63.61'

N

6

0

°

 

3

2

'

 

0

4

"

E

 

 

8

0

.

0

0

'

N48° 00' 12"E  46.09'

R=720.00'

L=159.93'

CB=N66°53'53"E

CL=159.60'

S

2

1

°

 

5

5

'

 

1

9

"

E

 

 

9

3

6

.

9

5

'

S68° 04' 41"W  44.47'

S00° 29' 52"E  56.01'

S07° 58' 42"W  18.88'

S

1

5

°

 

3

4

'
 

2

3

"

W

 

 

1

7

6

.

9

2

'

D=30°44'37"

R=370.00'

L=198.53'

CB=S30°56'41"W

D=13°04'00"

R=55.00'

L=12.54'

CB=N22°06'23"E

CL=12.52'

S

6

5

°

 

2

4

'

 

5

5

"

E

 

 

1

9

6

.

1

5

'

N

5

3

°

 

4

5

'

 

0

6

"

E

 

 

9

8

.

4

4

'

S

1

5

°

 

2

2

'
 

3

8

"

W

 

 

6

7

8

.

4

3

'

LOT 2

0.655 ACRES OR

28,543 SQUARE FEET

LOT 3

1.567 ACRES OR

68,245 SQUARE FEET

BLOCK J

2

2

8

.

3

8

'

N

7

5

°

 

0

0

'
 

0

4

"

E

 

 

2

2

8

.

3

2

'

S

2

9

°

 

2

6

'

 

3

4

"

E

 

 

1

2

9

.

0

8

'

S

2

9

°

 

2

6

'

 

3

2

"

E

 

 

1

4

5

.

9

5

'

1

2

9

.

0

7

'

2

7

6

.

8

9

'

2

7

6

.

8

9

'

S

2

9

°

 

2

6

'

 

3

2

"

E

 

 

1

4

5

.

9

5

'

LOT 3

1.567 ACRES OR

68,245 SQUARE FEET

CARLO RESTREPO

VOLUME 2805,

PAGE 570

D.R.E.C.T.

BLOCK J

REMAINDER OF

JAMES EDMUND KEMP, JR., JUDY ANNE KEMP

AMONETT, CAROLYN KEMP WITTENBRAKER AND

JOHN STACY KEMP, BENEFICIARIES UNDER THE

WILL OF JAMES E. KEMP, DECEASED

VOLUME 2171, PAGE 510

D.R.E.C.T.

D

A

V

I

S

 

R

O

A

D

P

R

E

V

I

O

U

S

L

Y

 

K

N

O

W

N

 

A

S

S

T

.

 

P

A

U

L

 

B

R

I

T

T

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

V

A

R

I

A

B

L

E

 

W

I

D

T

H

 

R

I

G

H

T

-

O

F

-

W

A

Y

N

2

9

°

 

2

6

'

 

4

0

"

W

 

 

5

4

1

.

4

3

'

N

2

9

°

 

3

0

'

 

5

5

"

W

 

 

1

6

9

.

5

6

'

LOT 1

16.781 ACRES OR

730,983 SQUARE FEET

N

2

9

°

 

2

5

'

 

0

5

"

W

 

 

4

0

5

.

9

6

'

PLACE OF

BEGINNING

TRACT 2

S

6

0

°

 

3

2

'

 

0

4

"

W

 

 

8

0

.

0

0

'

S

1

5

°

 

3

4

'
 

2

3

"

W

 

 

1

0

4

.

2

4

'

N

1

5

°

 

3

4

'
 

2

3

"

E

 

 

3

1

0

.

7

9

'

6

2

.

7

8

'

3

5

.

3

4

'

2

8

.

2

7

'

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

L

A

W

R

E

N

C

E

 

S

U

R

V

E

Y

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

6

1

6

T

E

M

P

O

R

A

R

Y

 

C

O

N

S

T

R

U

C

T

I

O

N

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

1

6

1

4

1

3

4

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

P

E

R

M

A

N

E

N

T

 

W

A

T

E

R

 

L

I

N

E

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

1

6

1

4

1

3

3

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

1

3

5

'
 

T

A

R

R

A

N

T

 

R

E

G

I

O

N

A

L

W

A

T

E

R

 

D

I

S

T

R

I

C

T

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

V

O

L

U

M

E

 

2

7

5

3

,

 

P

A

G

E

 

2

1

8

4

D

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

HERITAGE TOWNE

INSTRUMENT NUMBER

________________

O.P.R.E.C.T.

HERITAGE TOWNE

INSTRUMENT NUMBER

________________

O.P.R.E.C.T.

HERITAGE TOWNE

INSTRUMENT NUMBER

________________

O.P.R.E.C.T.

5

5

0

'

1

0

'

 

U

T

I

L

I

T

Y

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

10' UTILITY EASEMENT

INSTRUMENT NUMBER _______

O.P.R.E.C.T.

5' FENCE

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

5' FENCE

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

LOT 2

3.018 ACRES OR

131,478 SQUARE FEET

X

N

6

0

°

 

3

2

'

 

0

4

"

E

 

 

7

6

.

4

0

'

3

0

.

0

0

'

3

0

.

0

0

'

6

0

.

0

0

'

8

0

.

0

0

'

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

(BY THIS PLAT)

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

(BY THIS PLAT)

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

(BY THIS PLAT)

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

(BY THIS PLAT)

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

(BY THIS PLAT)

3

0

.

0

0

'

3

0

.

0

0

'

5' FENCE

MAINTENANCE

EASEMENT

B A N N I S T E R 
E N G I N E E R I N G

240 North Mitchell Road Mansfield, TX 76063 817.842.2094 817.842.2095 fax

TBPLS REGISTRATION NO. 10193823

B
:
\
C
l
i
e
n
t
s
\
1
1
6
 
(
A
e
r
o
f
i
r
m

a
 
C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
)
\
1
1
6
-
2
0
-
0
0
6
 
(
P
l
a
t
t
i
n
g
 
-
 
H

e
r
i
t
a
g
e
 
T
o
w

n
e
 
R
e
m

a
i
n
d
e
r
)
\
S
u
r
v
e
y
\
1
1
6
-
2
0
-
0
0
6
 
S
u
r
v
e
y
 
B
a
s
e
.
d
w

g

1
0
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
0
 
2
:
3
1
:
1
9
 
P
M

ENGINEER / SURVEYOR:

BANNISTER ENGINEERING, LLC

240 NORTH MITCHELL ROAD

MANSFIELD, TEXAS 76063

CONTACT: MICHAEL DAVIS, RPLS

PHONE: 817-842-2094

Mike@bannistereng.com

OWNER / DEVELOPER:

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

2935 SOUTH BELTLINE ROAD

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS 75052

CONTACT: CHASE DEBAUN

PHONE: 972-263-6796

chase@aerofirmaoffice.com

MATCH LINE
SEE SHEET NO. 2

MATCH LINE
SEE SHEET NO. 4

Case SD# P201104

PRELIMINARY PLAT - for Inspection Purposes only

HERITAGE TOWNE
Being Tract 1 (10.883 acres), Tract 2 (19.617 acres)

and Tract 3 (6.824 acres) out of the

Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract Number 616

City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas

3 Retail Lots, 2 Multi-Family-3 Lots & 1 Open Space Lot

Preparation Date: September 2020

Revision Date: October 2020

SHEET 3 OF 5

MATCH LINE
SEE SHEET NO. 4

Exhibit B- Preliminary Plat
Page 3 of 5



E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

E

x

.

O

H

E

X

W

O

O

D

X

W

O

O

D

X

W

O

O

D

X

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

X

W

I

R

E

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

E

x

.

1

8

"

W

L

I

I

II

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.
 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

E

x

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

P

r

o

p

.

 

W

L

I

I

II

JOE BOWERS AND JEFF HANSEN

VOLUME 2399, PAGE 2279

D.R.E.C.T.

REMAINDER OF

JAMES EDMUND KEMP, JR., JUDY ANNE KEMP

AMONETT, CAROLYN KEMP WITTENBRAKER AND

JOHN STACY KEMP, BENEFICIARIES UNDER THE

WILL OF JAMES E. KEMP, DECEASED

VOLUME 2171, PAGE 510

D.R.E.C.T.

FEMA ZONE "A"

(SHADED)

S

T

A

T

E

 

H

I

G

H

W

A

Y

 

2

8

7

V

A

R

I

A

B

L

E

 

W

I

D

T

H

 

R

I

G

H

T

-

O

F

-

W

A

Y

V

O

L

U

M

E

 

1

4

8

4

,

 

P

A

G

E

 

6

7

5

,

 

D

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

PORTION OF

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2011127

O.P.R.E.C.T.

PORTION OF

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2011127

O.P.R.E.C.T.

FOUND 1/2" CAPPED IRON ROD

STAMPED "AREA SURVEYING"

BEARS S77° 03' 36"E  3.62'

 FROM PROPERTY CORNER

FOUND TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION MONUMENT

FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD

BEARS N83° 02' 32"E  4.93'

FROM PROPERTY CORNER

FOUND CONCRETE MONUMENT

STAMPED "826-7"

FOUND 1/2" CAPPED IRON ROD

STAMPED "AREA SURVEYING"

BEARS N67° 52' 02"E  6.69'

FROM PROPERTY CORNER

FOUND TEXAS

DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION

MONUMENT

FOUND 1/2" CAPPED

IRON ROD STAMPED

"AREA SURVEYING"

FOUND MAG NAIL

FOUND 1/2" CAPPED IRON ROD

STAMPED "AREA SURVEYING"

BEARS N74° 34' 55"E  19.83'

FROM PROPERTY CORNER

FOUND TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION MONUMENT

FOUND MAG NAIL

E

V

A

 

M

A

E

B

O

U

L

E

V

A

R

D

V

A

R

I

A

B

L

E

 

W

I

D

T

H

R

I

G

H

T

-

O

F

-

W

A

Y

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

_

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

IRF

PORTION OF

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

INSTRUMENT NUMBER 2011127

O.P.R.E.C.T.

IRF

IRF

N

2

9

°

 

2

3

'

 

0

3

"

W

 

 

8

6

.

5

6

'

S60° 19' 57"W  44.88'

N

2

9

°

 

2

5

'

 

5

6

"

W

 

 

1

0

3

.

3

7

'

D=30°44'37"

R=370.00'

L=198.53'

CB=S30°56'41"W

CL=196.16'

S46° 18' 59"W  54.56'

S67° 53' 10"W  59.96'

S58° 33' 35"W  44.77'

S

1

8

°

 

0

9

'

 

0

7

"

E

 

 

4

6

1

.

4

0

'

N

5

5

°

 

3

6

'

 

0

3

"

W

 

 

4

4

1

.

9

1

'

D=26°04'06"

R=670.00'

L=304.84'

CB=N42°34'14"W

CL=302.21'

N15° 25' 23"E  28.38'

N58° 08' 29"E  50.33'

N49° 36' 40"E  54.66'

N

4

6

°

 

1

8

'

 

5

9

"

E

 

 

6

9

.

4

0

'

D=30°44'36"

R=430.00'

L=230.73'

CB=N30°56'41"E

CL=227.97'

S

1

5

°

 

2

2

'
 

3

8

"

W

 

 

6

7

8

.

4

3

'

LOT 3

1.567 ACRES OR

68,245 SQUARE FEET

BLOCK K

S

2

9

°

 

2

6

'

 

3

2

"

E

 

 

1

4

5

.

9

5

'

2

7

6

.

8

9

'

2

7

6

.

8

9

'

S

2

9

°

 

2

6

'

 

3

2

"

E

 

 

1

4

5

.

9

5

'

N74° 36' 03"W  27.15'

S

1

5

°

 

2

2

'
 

3

8

"

W

 

 

6

7

8

.

4

3

'

PLACE OF

BEGINNING

TRACT 3

1

9

.

8

8

'

2

5

.

0

0

'

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

(TRACT 826)

(JOE POOL LAKE)

VOLUME 676, PAGE 506

D.R.E.C.T.

S

T

A

T

E

 

H

I

G

H

W

A

Y

 

2

8

7

V

A

R

I

A

B

L

E

 

W

I

D

T

H

 

R

I

G

H

T

-

O

F

-

W

A

Y

V

O

L

U

M

E

 

1

4

8

4

,

 

P

A

G

E

 

6

7

5

,

 

D

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

J

O

S

E

P

H

 

L

A

W

R

E

N

C

E

 

S

U

R

V

E

Y

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

6

1

6

T

E

M

P

O

R

A

R

Y

 

C

O

N

S

T

R

U

C

T

I

O

N

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

1

6

1

4

1

3

4

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

1

3

5

'

 

T

A

R

R

A

N

T

 

R

E

G

I

O

N

A

L

W

A

T

E

R

 

D

I

S

T

R

I

C

T

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

V

O

L

U

M

E

 

2

7

5

3

,

 

P

A

G

E

 

2

1

8

4

D

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

P

E

R

M

A

N

E

N

T

 

W

A

T

E

R

 

L

I

N

E

 

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

I

N

S

T

R

U

M

E

N

T

 

N

U

M

B

E

R

 

1

6

1

4

1

3

3

O

.

P

.

R

.

E

.

C

.

T

.

5

4

4

'

5

4

2

'

5

4

6

'

5

4

8

'

5

5

0

'

5

4

4

'

5

4

6

'

5

4

2

'

5

4

8

'

5
5
0
'

5
6
0
'

5
5
8
'

5
5
6
'

5
5
4
'

5
5
2
'

LOT 1

3.805 ACRES OR

165,761 SQUARE FEET

LOT 2

3.018 ACRES OR

131,478 SQUARE FEET

X

N

4

4

°

 

4

5

'

 

3

5

"

W

 

 

2

5

8

.

4

8

'

N

1

8

°

 

4

0

'

 

5

3

"

W

 

 

8

5

.

3

5

'

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

(BY THIS PLAT)

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

(BY THIS PLAT)

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

(BY THIS PLAT)

15' UTILITY EASEMENT

(BY THIS PLAT)

3

0

.

0

0

'

3

0

.

0

0

'

3

0

.

0

0

'

3

0

.

0

0

'

4

0

.

0

0

'

4

0

.

0

0

'

8

0

.

0

0

'

B A N N I S T E R 
E N G I N E E R I N G

240 North Mitchell Road Mansfield, TX 76063 817.842.2094 817.842.2095 fax

TBPLS REGISTRATION NO. 10193823

B
:
\
C
l
i
e
n
t
s
\
1
1
6
 
(
A
e
r
o
f
i
r
m

a
 
C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
)
\
1
1
6
-
2
0
-
0
0
6
 
(
P
l
a
t
t
i
n
g
 
-
 
H

e
r
i
t
a
g
e
 
T
o
w

n
e
 
R
e
m

a
i
n
d
e
r
)
\
S
u
r
v
e
y
\
1
1
6
-
2
0
-
0
0
6
 
S
u
r
v
e
y
 
B
a
s
e
.
d
w

g

1
0
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
0
 
2
:
3
0
:
4
7
 
P
M

Case SD# P201104

PRELIMINARY PLAT - for Inspection Purposes only

HERITAGE TOWNE
Being Tract 1 (10.883 acres), Tract 2 (19.617

acres) and Tract 3 (6.824 acres) out of the

Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract Number 616

City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas

3 Retail Lots, 2 Multi-Family-3 Lots & 1 Open Space Lot

Preparation Date: September 2020

Revision Date: October 2020

SHEET 4 OF 5

ENGINEER / SURVEYOR:

BANNISTER ENGINEERING, LLC

240 NORTH MITCHELL ROAD

MANSFIELD, TEXAS 76063

CONTACT: MICHAEL DAVIS, RPLS

PHONE: 817-842-2094

Mike@bannistereng.com

OWNER / DEVELOPER:

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

2935 SOUTH BELTLINE ROAD

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS 75052

CONTACT: CHASE DEBAUN

PHONE: 972-263-6796

chase@aerofirmaoffice.com

MATCH LINE
SEE SHEET NO. 3

Exhibit B- Preliminary Plat
Page 4 of 5



Case SD# P201104

PRELIMINARY PLAT - for Inspection Purposes only

HERITAGE TOWNE
Being Tract 1 (10.883 acres), Tract 2 (19.617

acres) and Tract 3 (6.824 acres) out of the

Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract Number 616

City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas

3 Retail Lots, 2 Multi-Family-3 Lots & 1 Open Space Lot

Preparation Date: September 2020

Revision Date: October 2020

SHEET 5 OF 5

ENGINEER / SURVEYOR:

BANNISTER ENGINEERING, LLC

240 NORTH MITCHELL ROAD

MANSFIELD, TEXAS 76063

CONTACT: MICHAEL DAVIS, RPLS

PHONE: 817-842-2094

Mike@bannistereng.com

B A N N I S T E R 
E N G I N E E R I N G

240 North Mitchell Road Mansfield, TX 76063 817.842.2094 817.842.2095 fax

TBPLS REGISTRATION NO. 10193823

OWNER / DEVELOPER:

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

2935 SOUTH BELTLINE ROAD

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS 75052

CONTACT: CHASE DEBAUN

PHONE: 972-263-6796

chase@aerofirmaoffice.com

B
:
\
C
l
i
e
n
t
s
\
1
1
6
 
(
A
e
r
o
f
i
r
m

a
 
C
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
)
\
1
1
6
-
2
0
-
0
0
6
 
(
P
l
a
t
t
i
n
g
 
-
 
H

e
r
i
t
a
g
e
 
T
o
w

n
e
 
R
e
m

a
i
n
d
e
r
)
\
S
u
r
v
e
y
\
1
1
6
-
2
0
-
0
0
6
 
S
u
r
v
e
y
 
B
a
s
e
.
d
w

g

1
0
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
0
 
8
:
4
2
:
5
6
 
A
M

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: THAT DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC does hereby adopt this plat designating the hereon-above

described property as HERITAGE TOWNE, an addition to the City of Grand Prairie, Texas and does hereby dedicate to the City of Grand Prairie in fee simple

forever the streets, alleys and storm water management areas shown thereon. The easements shown thereon are hereby dedicated and reserved for the purposes

as indicated. The utility, access, GPS monuments and fire lane easements shall be open to the public and private utilities for each particular use. The maintenance

of paving on the utility, access and fire lane easements is the responsibility of the property owner. No buildings or other improvements, including fences, shall be

permitted in an erosion hazard easement. No buildings or other improvements or growths, except fences, vegetation, driveways, and sidewalks less than 6 feet in

width shall be constructed or placed upon, over or across the easements as shown except as permitted by City Ordinances. No improvements that may obstruct

the flow of water may be constructed or placed in drainage easements. Any public utility shall have the right to remove and keep removed all or parts of the

encroachments allowed above which in any way endanger or interfere with the construction, maintenance or efficiency of its respective system on the easements,

and all public utilities shall at all times have the full right of ingress and egress to or from and upon the said easements for the purpose of constructing,

reconstructing, inspecting, patrolling, maintaining and adding to or removing all or parts of its respective systems without the necessity at any time of procuring

the permission of anyone. Any public utility shall have the right of ingress and egress to private property for the purpose of reading meters and any maintenance

and service required or ordinarily performed by that utility.

This plat approved subject to all platting ordinances, rules, regulations and resolutions of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas.

Witness, my hand this _____ day of _______________________, 2020.

DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC

By: _________________________________________

State of Texas     §

County of ______________   §

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared _____________________________, known to me to be the person whose name is

subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed and in the

capacity therein stated.

Given under my hand and seal of office this _____ day of _______________________, 2020.

________________________________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

My Commission expires:______________________________

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE:

WHEREAS, DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC is the sole owner of that certain tract of land in the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract Number 616, City of Grand

Prairie, Ellis County, Texas:

TRACT 1

BEING 10.884 acres (474,090 square feet) of land being a portion of that certain tract of land described in a Warranty Deed to Davis Rd Development LLC

(hereinafter referred to as Davis Rd Development tract), as recorded in Instrument Number 2011127, Official Public Records, Ellis County, Texas (O.P.R.E.C.T.); said

10.884 acres (474,090 square feet) of land being more particularly described, by metes and bounds, as follows:

BEGINNING at a concrete monument found for the Northwesterly corner of said Davis Rd Development tract, same being the Southeasterly line of that certain tract

of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to TEXDEVCO GP LLC (hereinafter referred to as TEXDEVCO GP tract), as recorded in Instrument Number 1900187,

O.P.R.E.C.T., same also being the Northerly corner of that certain tract of land described in a Warranty Deed to William Telford and wife, Kay Telford (hereinafter

referred to as Telford tract), as recorded in Volume 738, Page 371, Deed Records, Ellis County, Texas (D.R.E.C.T.);

THENCE North 64 degrees 23 minutes 15 seconds East with the common line between said Davis Rd Development tract and said TEXDEVCO GP tract, pass at a

distance of 424.28 feet, the Southeasterly corner of said TEXDEVCO GP tract, same being the Southwesterly corner of that certain tract of land described in a deed

to WM SUB GT, LP (hereinafter referred to as WM SUB GT tract), as recorded in Volume 2805, Page 57, D.R.E.C.T. and continue with the common line between said

Davis Rd Development tract and said WM SUB GT tract for a total distance of 610.46 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found

for the Northerly Northwest corner of that certain tract of land described as Lot 1X (Open Space), Block G, Heritage Towne (hereinafter referred to as Lot 1X), an

addition to the City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas, according to the plat recorded in Instrument Number _________, O.P.R.E.C.T.;

THENCE South 21 degrees 55 minutes 19 seconds East with the common line between the remainder of said Davis Rd Development tract and said Lot 1X, a distance

of 882.17 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner for the Southwesterly corner of said Lot 1X, same being in the

existing Northerly right-of-way line of Heritage Towne Boulevard (variable width right-of-way), as recorded in Instrument Number _________, O.P.R.E.C.T.;

THENCE with the common line between the remainder of said Davis Rd Development tract and the existing Northerly right-of-way line of said Heritage Towne

Boulevard for the following 9 courses:

1. North 88 degrees 48 minutes 33 seconds West for a distance of 11.59 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

2. South 73 degrees 15 minutes 41 seconds West, a distance of 75.77 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

3. South 51 degrees 37 minutes 46 seconds West, a distance of 48.83 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

4. South 73 degrees 15 minutes 41 seconds West, a distance of 261.89 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner for the beginning of a curve to the left, whose long chord bears South 66 degrees 53 minutes 53 seconds West, a distance of 172.90 feet;

5. Southwesterly with said curve to the left having a radius of 780.00 feet, through a central angle of 12 degrees 43 minutes 37 seconds, for an arc distance 

of 173.26 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner;

6. South 60 degrees 32 minutes 04 seconds West, a distance of 76.45 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

7. South 73 degrees 03 minutes 39 seconds West, a distance of 46.11 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

8. South 60 degrees 32 minutes 04 seconds West, a distance of 80.00 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

9. North 74 degrees 29 minutes 25 seconds West, a distance of 10.38 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner in the Southeasterly line of the aforesaid Telford tract;

THENCE North 64 degrees 05 minutes 22 seconds East with the common line between said Davis Rd Development tract and said Telford tract, a distance of 275.21

feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner, same being the Southeasterly corner of said Telford tract;

THENCE North 29 degrees 26 minutes 50 seconds West with the common line between said Davis Rd Development tract and said Telford tract, a distance of 823.38

feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING, and containing a calculated area of 10.884 acres (474,090 square feet) of land.

TRACT 2

BEING 19.617 acres (854,532 square feet) of land being a portion of that certain tract of land described in a Warranty Deed to Davis Rd Development LLC

(hereinafter referred to as Davis Rd Development tract), as recorded in Instrument Number 2011127, Official Public Records, Ellis County, Texas (O.P.R.E.C.T.); said

10.884 acres (474,090 square feet) of land being more particularly described, by metes and bounds, as follows:

BEGINNING at a mag nail found for the Northwesterly corner of that certain tract of land described in a General Warranty Deed to Carlo Restrepo (hereinafter

referred to as Restrepo tract), as recorded in Volume 2805, Page 570, Deed Records, Ellis County, Texas (D.R.E.C.T.), same being in Davis Road, previously known

as St. Paul Britton Road (variable width right-of-way), same also being the Northeasterly line of that certain tract of land described in a deed to James Edmund

Kemp, Jr., Judy Anne Kemp Amonett, Carolyn Kemp Wittenbraker and JohnStacy Kemp, beneficiaries under the Will James E. Kemp, deceased (hereinafter referred

to as James E. Kemp tract), as recorded in Volume 2171, Page 510, D.R.E.C.T.;

THENCE North 29 degrees 26 minutes 40 seconds West with the common line between said Davis Rd Development tract and said James E. kemp tract and with said

Davis Road, a distance of 534.95 feet to a mag nail found for corner;

THENCE North 29 degrees 30 minutes 55 seconds West, continue with the common line between said Davis Rd Development tract and said James E. kemp tract and

with said Davis Road, a distance of 144.57 feet to a mag nail found for corner, same being the intersection of the existing Southerly right-of-way line of Heritage

Towne Boulevard (variable width right-of-way), as recorded in Instrument Number _________, O.P.R.E.C.T. with said Davis Road

THENCE with the common line between the remainder of said Davis Rd Development tract and the existing Southerly right-of-way line of Heritage Towne Boulevard

for the following 6 courses:

1. North 15 degrees 30 minutes 35 seconds East, departing said Davis Road, a distance of 63.61 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped 

"RPLS 4838" found for corner;

2. North 60 degrees 32 minutes 04 seconds East, a distance of 80.00 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

3. North 48 degrees 00 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 46.09 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

4. North 60 degrees 32 minutes 04 seconds East, a distance of 76.40 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner, same being the beginning of a curve to the right, whose long chord bears North 66 degrees 53 minutes 53 seconds East, a distance of 159.60 feet;

5. Northeasterly with said curve to the right having a radius of 720.00 feet, through a central angle of 12 degrees 43 minutes 37 seconds, for an arc distance

of 159.93 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner;

6. North 73 degrees 15 minutes 41 seconds East, a distance of 400.83 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner, same being the Northwesterly corner of that certain tract of land described as Lot 2X (Open Space), Block F, Heritage Towne (hereinafter referred to 

as Lot 2X), an addition to the City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas, according to the plat recorded in Instrument Number _________, O.P.R.E.C.T.;

THENCE South 21 degrees 55 minutes 19 seconds East, departing the existing Southerly right-of-way line of Heritage Towne Boulevard and with the common line

between the remainder of said Davis Rd Development tract and said Lot 2X, a distance of 936.95 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS

4838" found for corner in the existing Northerly right-of-way line of Eva Mae Boulevard (variable width right-of-way), as recorded in Instrument Number _________,

O.P.R.E.C.T.;

THENCE with the common line between the remainder of said Davis Rd Development tract and the existing Northerly right-of-way line of said Eva Mae Boulevard for

the following 11 courses:

1. South 68 degrees 04 minutes 41 seconds West, a distance of 44.47 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

2. South 15 degrees 34 minutes 23 seconds West, a distance of 62.78 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

3. South 15 degrees 34 minutes 23 seconds West, a distance of 41.46 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

4. South 00 degrees 29 minutes 52 seconds East, a distance of 56.01 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

5. South 07 degrees 58 minutes 42 seconds West, a distance of 18.88 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

6. South 15 degrees 34 minutes 23 seconds West, a distance of 176.92 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner, same being the beginning of a curve to the right, whose long chord bears South 30 degrees 56 minutes 41 seconds West, a distance of 196.16 feet;

7. Southwesterly with said curve to the right having a radius of 370.00 feet, through a central angle of 30 degrees 44 minutes 37 seconds, for an arc distance

of 198.53 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner;

8. South 46 degrees 18 minutes 59 seconds West, a distance of 54.56 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

9. South 67 degrees 53 minutes 10 seconds West, a distance of 59.96 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

10. South 58 degrees 33 minutes 35 seconds West, a distance of 44.77 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

11. North 74 degrees 36 minutes 03 seconds West, a distance of 27.15 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner in the Southwesterly line of said Davis Rd Development tract, same also being existing Northeasterly right-of-way line of State Highway 287 (variable 

width right-of-way), as recorded in Volume 1484, Page 675, D.R.E.C.T.;

THENCE North 29 degrees 23 minutes 03 seconds West with the common line between said Davis Rd Development tract and the existing Northeasterly right-of-way

line of said State Highway 287, a distance of 86.56 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner;

THENCE South 60 degrees 19 minutes 57 seconds West, continue with the common line between said Davis Rd Development tract and the existing Northeasterly

right-of-way line of said State Highway 287, a distance of 44.88 feet to a mag nail found in the aforesaid Davis Road, same also being the Northeasterly line of that

certain tract of land described in a General Warranty Deed to Joe Bowers and Jeff Hansen (hereinafter referred to as Bowers tract), as recorded in Volume 2399,

Page 2279, D.R.E.C.T.;

THENCE North 29 degrees 25 minutes 56 seconds West, departing the existing Northeasterly right-of-way line of said State Highway 287 and with the common line

between said Davis Rd Development tract and said Bowers tract, a distance of 103.37 feet to a mag nail found for corner;

THENCE North 29 degrees 26 minutes 34 seconds West, continue with the common line between said Davis Rd Development tract and said Bowers tract, pass at a

distance of 142.26 feet, the Northeasterly corner of said Bowers tract, same being an angle point in the Northeasterly line of the aforesaid James E. Kemp tract, and

continue with said course, the common line between said Davis Rd Development tract and said James E. Kemp tract and with said Davis Road, a distance of 275.05

feet to a mag nail found for corner, same being an angle point in the Westerly line of said Davis Rd Development tract, same also being the Southwesterly corner of

the aforesaid Restrepo tract;

THENCE North 75 degrees 00 minutes 04 seconds East, departing the Northeasterly line of said James E. Kemp tract, departing said Davis Road and with the

common line between Davis Rd Development tract and said Restrepo tract, a distance of 254.19 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for corner for the

Southeasterly corner of said Restrepo tract;

THENCE North 29 degrees 25 minutes 05 seconds West, continue with the common line between Davis Rd Development tract and said Restrepo tract, a distance of

177.07 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for corner;

THENCE South 75 degrees 03 minutes 13 seconds West, continue with the common line between Davis Rd Development tract and said Restrepo tract, a distance of

254.28 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING, and containing a calculated area of 19.617 acres (854,532 square feet)  of land.

TRACT 3

BEING 6.824 acres (297,239 square feet) of land being a portion of that certain tract of land described in a Warranty Deed to Davis Rd Development LLC

(hereinafter referred to as Davis Rd Development tract), as recorded in Instrument Number 2011127, Official Public Records, Ellis County, Texas (O.P.R.E.C.T.); said

6.824 acres (297,239 square feet) of land being more particularly described, by metes and bounds, as follows:

BEGINNING at a Texas Department of Transportation monument found for the Southerly corner of said Davis Rd Development tract, same being the Southwesterly

corner of that certain tract of land described as Tract 826 in a General Warranty Deed to the United States of America (hereinafter referred to as Tract 826), as

recorded in Volume 676, Page 506, D.R.E.C.T., same also being the existing Northeasterly right-of-way line of State Highway 287 (variable width right-of-way), as

recorded in Volume 1484, Page 675, D.R.E.C.T.;

THENCE North 55 degrees 36 minutes 03 seconds West with the common line between said Davis Rd Development tract and the existing Northeasterly right-of-way

line of said State Highway 287, a distance of 441.91 feet to a Texas Department of Transportation monument found for the beginning of a curve to the right, whose

long chord bears North 42 degrees 34 minutes 14 seconds West, a distance of 302.21 feet;

THENCE Northwesterly, continue with the common line between said Davis Rd Development tract and the existing Northeasterly right-of-way line of said State

Highway 287 and said curve to the right having a radius of 670.00 feet, through a central angle of 26 degrees 04 minutes 06 seconds, for an arc distance of 304.84

feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner, same being the intersection of the existing Northeasterly right-of-way line

of said State Highway 287 and the existing Northerly right-of-way line of Eva Mae Boulevard (variable width right-of-way), as recorded in Instrument Number

_________, O.P.R.E.C.T.;

THENCE with the common line between the remainder of said Davis Rd Development tract and the existing Northerly right-of-way line of said Eva Mae Boulevard for

the following 7 courses:

1. North 15 degrees 25 minutes 23 seconds East, departing the existing Northeasterly right-of-way line of said State Highway 287, a distance of 28.38 feet to

a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner;

2. North 58 degrees 08 minutes 29 seconds East, a distance of 50.33 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

3. North 49 degrees 36 minutes 40 seconds East, a distance of 54.66 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner;

4. North 46 degrees 18 minutes 59 seconds East, a distance of 69.40 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner, same being the beginning of a curve to the left, whose long chord bears North 30 degrees 56 minutes 41 seconds East, a distance of 227.97 feet;

5. Northeasterly with said curve to the left having a radius of 430.00 feet, through a central angle of 30 degrees 44 minutes 36 seconds, for an arc distance of

230.73 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner;

6. North 15 degrees 34 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 310.79 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for 

corner, same being the beginning of a curve to the right, whose long chord bears North 22 degrees 06 minutes 23 seconds East, a distance of 12.52 feet;

7. Northerly with said curve to the right having a radius of 55.00 feet, through a central angle of 13 degrees 04 minutes 00 seconds, for an arc distance of 

12.54 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner, same being the Westerly corner of that certain tract of land 

described as Lot 9X, Block E of the aforesaid Heritage Towne (hereinafter referred to as Lot 9X);

THENCE South 65 degrees 24 minutes 55 seconds East, departing the existing Northerly right-of-way line of said Eva Mae Boulevard, with the common line between

the remainder of said Davis Rd Development tract and said Lot 9X, pass at a distance of 135.25 feet, the Southeasterly corner of said Lot 9X, same being the

Southwesterly corner of that certain tract of land described as Lot 8, Block E of said Heritage Towne (hereinafter referred to as Lot 8), continue with said course and

the common line between the remainder of said Davis Rd Development tract and said Lot 8, a distance of 196.15 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap

stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner;

THENCE North 53 degrees 45 minutes 06 seconds East, continue with said course and the common line between the remainder of said Davis Rd Development tract

and said Lot 8, a distance of 98.44 feet to a five-eighths inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" found for corner, same being the Southeasterly corner of

said Lot 8, same being the Easterly line of said Davis Rd Development tract, same also being the Westerly line of the aforesaid Tract 826;

THENCE South 15 degrees 22 minutes 38 seconds West with the common line between said Davis Rd Development tract and said Tract 826, a distance of 678.43

feet to a concrete monument stamped "826-7" found for corner;

THENCE South 18 degrees 09 minutes 07 seconds East, continue with the common line between said Davis Rd Development tract and said Tract 826, a distance of

461.40 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING, and containing a calculated area of 6.824 acres (297,239 square feet) of land.

Exhibit B- Preliminary Plat
Page 5 of 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.: 116-20-006



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10562 Name: P200901 - Slink Addition, Lots 1-7, Block 1

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:11/2/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/9/2020

Title: P200901 - Preliminary Plat - Slink Addition, Lots 1-7, Block 1 (City Council District 2).  Preliminary Plat
creating seven lots on 54.692 acres.  Tract 7 of the William Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1193 and Tract
1.1 of the Frederick Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 395, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas,
zoned PD-397, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the northwest
corner of SH-161 and Forum Dr.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
P200901 - Preliminary Plat - Slink Addition, Lots 1-7, Block 1 (City Council District 2).  Preliminary Plat creating
seven lots on 54.692 acres.  Tract 7 of the William Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1193 and Tract 1.1 of the Frederick
Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 395, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-397, within the SH-161
Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the northwest corner of SH-161 and Forum Dr.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Preliminary Plat creating seven lots on 54.692 acres. Tract 7 of the William Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1193
and Tract 1.1 of the Frederick Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 395, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas,
zoned PD-397, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the northwest corner of
SH-161 and Forum Dr.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Preliminary Plat is to create seven lots on 54.67 acres to facilitate development of multi-
family, retail/restaurant, and single-family townhome uses in the SH-161 Corridor. The Site Plan for Phase 1 of
this development is under concurrent review (S200901). Revisions to the Preliminary Plat may be required
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10562, Version: 1

this development is under concurrent review (S200901). Revisions to the Preliminary Plat may be required
depending on approval of the related site plan.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Zoning and Land Use

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-143 Gas Well, Undeveloped

South PD-382; PD-294 Undeveloped

West PD-231C; PD-367 Single Family Residential Use; Hybrid Housing

East PD-294; PD-294D IKEA, Retail, Restaurant Uses; Undeveloped

PLAT FEATURES:

The plat depicts the necessary utility and access easements and meets the applicable dimensional standards.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the condition that the plat adheres to
the standards set forth in the UDC.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



S Forum Dr

S Hwy 161 Sb  

Mayfield Rd

S H
wy

 16
1 N

b  

S Hwy 161 Svc Sb Rd

W
at er wo odD r

S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd
Ikea Pl

Qu
an

na
h D

r

Ik
ea

 W
ayWest Grove Ln

Hopi Trl

Kalgary Ln

Oryx Ln

Plains Ct

Brazos Ct

Swenson Ct

Sa
ra

 Ja
ne

 Pk
wy

Paducah Ln

Dayton Ln

Cap Rock Ln

Crosbyton Ln

D

ove Cir

Zion Hill  

Panorama Ln

Edgewood Dr

Hacienda Ct

SHwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

CASE LOCATION MAP
Preliminary Plat - P200901
Slink Addition, Lots 1-7, Block 1 ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦20

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat
Page 2 of 2



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10563 Name: S201101 - Hamilton Bardin Village Phase 1

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:11/2/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/9/2020

Title: S201101 - Site Plan - Hamilton Bardin Village Phase 1 (City Council District 4).  Site Plan for Phase 1
of Hamilton Bardin Village, which includes 405 multi-family units in five buildings with a five-story
parking garage on 9.647 acres, a 43,874 sq. ft. movie theater on 5.147 acres, and open space on .93
acres.  Sheffield Village Addition Phase 4, 5, and 6, Block 3, Lot B, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant
County, Texas, zoned PD-395, within the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, generally located south of I
-20, east of SH-360, and north of Bardin Rd, and addressed as 3025 W I-20.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Amenity Checklists.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
S201101 - Site Plan - Hamilton Bardin Village Phase 1 (City Council District 4).  Site Plan for Phase 1 of
Hamilton Bardin Village, which includes 405 multi-family units in five buildings with a five-story parking
garage on 9.647 acres, a 43,874 sq. ft. movie theater on 5.147 acres, and open space on .93 acres.  Sheffield
Village Addition Phase 4, 5, and 6, Block 3, Lot B, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-
395, within the SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, generally located south of I-20, east of SH-360, and north of
Bardin Rd, and addressed as 3025 W I-20.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Site Plan for a phased mixed-use development of multi-family, retail, restaurant, and a theater on 16.551 acres.
Sheffield Village Phase IV, Block 3, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-395, within the I-

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 1 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10563, Version: 1

Sheffield Village Phase IV, Block 3, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-395, within the I-
20 and SH-360 Corridor Overlay District, generally located south of I-20 on the east side of Bardin Rd, and
addressed as 3025 W IH-20.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct Phase One of a mixed-use development for multi-family, retail, restaurant,
and a theater on 16.551 acres. Site Plan approval by City Council is required for development within a Corridor
Overlay District or any project involving multi-family use. Development at this location requires City Council
approval of a Site Plan because the property is within the I-20 and SH-360 Corridor Overlay Districts and
intended for multi-family use.

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified
Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques. The UDC
identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional standards,
landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-37A; PD-327 Light Industrial, Commercial, Retail

South PD-140 Medical Offices, Multi-Family

PD-140B Undeveloped

West City Limits City Limits

East PD-140 Concorde Career College; Church

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

This 21.80-acre, horizontal mixed-use development is anchored by Alamo Drafthouse, a 43,874 sq. ft. movie
theater. Phase One of the project includes the theater, 405 multi-family units, and a common open space
amenity. The multi-family development includes five residential buildings, one of which wraps around three
sides of a five-level structure parking garage.

The three use components - multi-family, retail/restaurant, and theater - are physically and functionally
organized around the Grand Lawn. Buildings frame the space to create a consistent edge and screen surface
parking from the open space.

The development will be accessible from Bardin Rd and the I-20 frontage road. The primary internal drives
will be constructed with Phase One and include on-street parallel parking spaces. PD-395 requires the
developer to participate in the cost of signalizing the intersection of Bardin Rd and SH-360. The applicant will
continue to coordinate with the Transportation Department on the timing of intersection improvements.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

The subject property is zoned PD-395 with a base zoning of Multi-Family Three (MF-3) and General Retail
(GR). The following tables evaluate the density and dimensional standards of the proposed development. The
proposal meets the density and dimensional requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary for Commercial Uses (Lot 2)

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area Sq. Ft. 5,000 224,250 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 394.3 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 579.42 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 0 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 60 57.83 Yes

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 2 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10563, Version: 1
Table 2: Site Data Summary for Commercial Uses (Lot 2)

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area Sq. Ft. 5,000 224,250 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 394.3 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 579.42 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 0 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 60 57.83 Yes

Table 3: Site Data Summary for Multi-Family (Lot 1)

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area Sq. Ft. 12,000 420,216 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 1,226.25 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 120 344 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 30 25 No

Rear Setback (Ft.) 45 39 No

Max. Height (Ft.) 66 56.3 Yes

Max. Density (DUA) 42 42 Yes

Max. One Bedroom (%) 60 60 Yes

Parking

Both lots provide the required number of parking spaces for their associated use. The multi-family portion of
the development includes a five-level structured parking garage and some tuck-under garages. Garage spaces
account for more than 50% of the required parking spaces, meeting the requirements for PD-395.

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Appendix F and Appendix W of the UDC.
The proposal meets or exceeds the landscape and screening requirements.

Exterior Building Materials

The multi-family exterior finish materials include brick, stucco, wood slat, and fiber cement siding. The
proposed elevations meet the recommended design and building materials in Appendix W. The theater exterior
materials include patterned tilt wall concrete panels, painted tilt wall concrete panels, and architectural metal
panels. The north facade includes a painted mural that accounts for 17% of the area of the facade. Any mural
outside of the Central Area (CA) zoning district requires City Council approval.

Project Amenities

Both the multi-family and theater must provide amenities. Appendix W requires multi-family developments to
provide amenities from three categories:

· environmentally friendly features

· high-quality features or designs

· technology

Appendix F requires commercial developments to provide amenities from four categories:

· usable open space and pedestrian linkages

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 3 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10563, Version: 1

· site design and building orientation

· building design

· healthy, smart, and sustainable community

The tables below summarize the amenities included in the project. Both the multi-family and theater meet the
requirements.

Table 5: Appendix W Amenities

Category Tier Amenity

Environmentally Friendly Features 1 Reservation of existing natural resources

Environmentally Friendly Features 1 Electric car charge station

Environmentally Friendly Features 1 High efficiency windows

Environmentally Friendly Features 2 Efficient roofing material

Environmentally Friendly Features 2 Recycled or locally sourced materials

Environmentally Friendly Features 2 Recycling Program

Environmentally Friendly Features 2 Walking/jogging trails

Environmentally Friendly Features 3 Additional insulation

Environmentally Friendly Features 3 LED or Low-Wattage Lighting

Environmentally Friendly Features 3 Bicycle Parking

Environmentally Friendly Features 3 Native plantings

Environmentally Friendly Features 3 Outdoor Recreation Spaces with Communal Features

Environmentally Friendly Features 3 Single dog park (included in Area C)

High-Quality Features or Designs 1 Granite Countertops in Kitchens and Bathrooms

High-Quality Features or Designs 1 Upgraded Flooring

High-Quality Features or Designs 1 10-foot ceilings

High-Quality Features or Designs 1 Upgraded Cabinetry

High-Quality Features or Designs 2 Upgraded Light Fixtures

High-Quality Features or Designs 2 Walk-in Closets

High-Quality Features or Designs 2 Upgraded Bathroom and Kitchen Hardware

High-Quality Features or Designs 2 Full-Size Stainless-Steel Major Appliances

High-Quality Features or Designs 2 8-foot doors leading to each room of a unit

Technology N/A Wi-Fi Internet Access in Common Areas

Table 6: Appendix F Amenities

Menu Item Category

Enhanced Usable Open Space Usable Open Space & Pedestrian Linkages

Ceremonial Drive Site Design & Building Orientation

Park Once Environment Site Design & Building Orientation

Color Contrast Building Design

Specialty Accent Building Design

Articulated Public Entrance Building Design

Roof Profile Variation Building Design

Articulation Elements Building Design

70% Native Plants Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community

Ride Sharing Drop-Off Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community

Pollinator Friendly Flowers Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community

Curbless Pedestrian Focused Streets Alternative Compliance
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 4 of 5

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10563, Version: 1

Table 6: Appendix F Amenities

Menu Item Category

Enhanced Usable Open Space Usable Open Space & Pedestrian Linkages

Ceremonial Drive Site Design & Building Orientation

Park Once Environment Site Design & Building Orientation

Color Contrast Building Design

Specialty Accent Building Design

Articulated Public Entrance Building Design

Roof Profile Variation Building Design

Articulation Elements Building Design

70% Native Plants Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community

Ride Sharing Drop-Off Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community

Pollinator Friendly Flowers Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community

Curbless Pedestrian Focused Streets Alternative Compliance

VARIANCES:

1. Exterior Color - the west building elevation includes a red metal panel that accounts for 17% of the
facade, which exceeds the 10% allowed in Appendix F.

2. Required Windows - the proposal does not meet the 30% window requirement for the north facade or
the window requirement for the whole building.

3. Setbacks - the articulation bump-outs on the multi-family buildings encroach the setback by five feet
along the south and west property lines. Multi-family buildings are setback 40 feet from the internal lot
line to the north.  The UDC requires a rear yard setback of at least 45 feet.

4. Landscape Buffer - Appendix F requires a 30 ft. landscape buffer along streets. The landscape buffer
along the I-20 frontage road is 25 ft.

5. Parking Lot Design - Appendix F requires concrete pedestrian paths between rows of parking spaces
and tree islands every 10 parking spaces. The proposal does not include concrete pedestrian paths and
the number of parking spaces between tree islands exceeds 10 spaces.

ANALYSIS:

Staff does not object to the variances to the building design of the theater. Although the use of a primary color
exceeds what is allowed, it seems proportional to the size and scale building. The proposed use is a movie
theater - it isn’t feasible to provide the required windows. The change in materials, building articulation, and
mural create visual interest and help reduce the perceived scale of the buildings. Staff believes that the design
meets the intent of Appendix F.

The site design and mix of uses create a unique development. The requested variances contribute to the overall
development by allowing buildings to be placed so that they frame the internal streets and aggregating open
space into a single usable open space.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 5 of 5

powered by Legistar™



W Ih 20 Eb  

W Ih 20 Wb  

W Bardin Rd

Mag
na

Ca
rta

Bl
vd

´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

§̈¦20

CASE LOCATION MAP
S201101 - Site Plan
Hamilton Bardin Village

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 1 of 4



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 2 of 4



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 3 of 4



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 4 of 4



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 1 of 6



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 2 of 6



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 3 of 6



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 4 of 6



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 5 of 6



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 6 of 6



Category 1: Environmentally-friendly building materials, construction techniques, or other features 
Tier I (Pick Three) 

 i. “Smart” technology which automatically controls functions such as lights and thermostat to reduce energy loads during the day or at times of 
peak energy usage. 

 ii. Use of solar or other form of alternative energy to satisfy approximately 25% or more of on-site energy demand. 

 iii. Landscaping plan that makes use of native, drought resistant plantings not requiring the use of irrigation. In lieu of sod or turf, drought resistant 
plantings may be combined with coordinated hardscapes of high design quality and appearance for the purposes of meeting Tier I requirements. 

 iv. Reservation of existing natural areas comprising 5% or more of the overall project size, with such areas incorporating quality non-invasive tree 
stands, habitat or riparian areas, and not including existing floodplain or other areas already protected or inherently unsuitable for development. 

 v. Permeable pavement for 10% or more of total paving. 

 vi. Electric car charging station (minimum 2). 

 vii. High efficiency windows on residential and common buildings. 

 viii. Stormwater or grey water reclamation for on-site reuse equivalent to a minimum 100% of irrigation in accordance with section 8.4.1.11. 

Tier II (Pick Four) 

 i. Integration of commercial/retail/office space or live-work units. 

 ii. Permeable pavement for 5% or more of total paving. 

 iii. Roofing material with a minimum total solar reflectance of 0.70 and a minimum thermal emittance of 0.75 when measured using ASTM testing 
methods endorsed by the North Central Texas Council of Governments. 

 iv. Significant use of recycled or locally-sourced materials.  Locally-sourced is defined as a material having its origin within 50 miles of the project. 

 v. Preservation of existing non-invasive trees with a combined canopy square footage area totaling at least 5% of the overall project size (trees 
can come from any portion of the site other than areas which are already projected or inherently unsuitable for development, such as 
floodplain). 

 vi. Qualified recycling program available to every resident. 

 vii. Walking/jogging trails within the development.  Where possible, trails should utilize existing natural areas and provide linkages to existing or 
future area trail networks. 

 viii. Stormwater or grey water reclamation for on-site reuse equivalent to a minimum 50% of irrigation in accordance with section 8.4.1.11. 

Tier III (Pick Five) 

 i. Additional insulation. 

 ii. LED or low-wattage lighting. 

 iii. Bicycle parking. 

 iv. Use of additional native plantings totaling 10% or more of minimum landscape requirements. 

 v. Stormwater or grey water reclamation for on-site reuse in accordance with section 8.4.1.11. 

 vi. Solar-ready building design. 

 vii. Outdoor recreation spaces with communal features such as furniture, landscaping, gardens, televisions, movie screens, BBQ grills, pergolas, 
areas for fitness or sports activities, and interactive water features, not including standard unheated swimming pools, which are designed for 
water conservation or reuse. 

 viii. Big and small dog parks. 

Category 2: High-quality features or designs 
Tier I (Pick Four) 

 i. Granite countertops or similar in kitchens and bathrooms. 

 ii. Upgraded flooring throughout, consisting of masonry tile, such as porcelain or travertine, wood-look tile, true hardwood, stained concrete, or 
deep pile carpeting. 

 iii. Minimum 10 foot ceilings in living areas, kitchen, dining rooms, hallways, bathrooms and bedrooms. 

 iv. Upgraded woodwork throughout each unit, such as crown molding, wainscot, chair rails, window and door moldings. 

 v. Upgraded cabinetry. 

Tier II (Pick Five) 

 i. Arched forms separating rooms and living spaces. 

 ii. Upgraded light fixtures including recessed lighting or indirect lighting. 

 iii. Walk-in closets. 

 iv. Jetted bathtubs. 

 v. Upgraded bathroom and kitchen hardware, including faucets and sinks. 

 vi. Full-size stainless steel major appliances (oven, range, refrigerator, dishwasher, microwave oven). 

 vii. 8 foot doors leading to each room of a unit. 

Category 3: Technology (Provide All) 

 a. Integrated USB ports within all units. 

 b. App-enabled functionality for door locks, lighting, thermostat, appliances, or other electronics. 

 c. App-enabled communication between residents and management for the reporting of problems related to mechanical failures, safety 
concerns, or noise issues. 

 d. Wi-fi internet access provided to users of common amenities such as clubhouse, pool, walking trails, and fitness area. 

 

Exhibit E - Amenity Checklists
Page 1 of 5

jbrooks
Contractor
1

jbrooks
Contractor
3

jbrooks
Contractor
3

jbrooks
Contractor
3

jbrooks
Contractor
3

jbrooks
Contractor
3

jbrooks
Contractor
3

jbrooks
Contractor
1

jbrooks
Contractor
5

jbrooks
Contractor
5

jbrooks
Contractor
5

jbrooks
Contractor
5

jbrooks
Contractor
5

jbrooks
Contractor
1

jbrooks
Contractor
1

jbrooks
Contractor
3

jbrooks
Contractor
3

jbrooks
Contractor
3

jbrooks
Contractor
1

jbrooks
Contractor
1

jbrooks
Line

jbrooks
Text Box
(single dog park included in Area C)

jbrooks
Contractor
1

jbrooks
Contractor
1



Appendix F Menu Items Checklist 

The Appendix F Menu Items Checklist intended to help developers organize their Development Request submittal and 

communicate Menu Items choices to Staff.  This checklist is not intended to be used without first reading Appendix F.  

Developers must select a total of 12 Menu Items.  Unless otherwise indicated, each Menu Item counts as 1 Menu Item. 

Instructions: Complete checklist by indicating which Menu Items you select. After completing the checklist fill out the 

Menu Item Summary Table. 

Usable Open Space & Pedestrian Linkages 
 If Selected Menu Item Description 

 Enhanced Usable Open Space Usable Open Space that exceeds the minimum requirements with 
at least four Tier 1 amenities and three or more Tier 2 amenities. 

 Tier 1 Amenities: two types of seating, active water feature, 
furnished play area, dog park, sculpture, artwork, furnished 
outdoor game area, or comparable amenity proposed by the 
developer. 

 Seasonal plantings in decorative planters, textured paving, 
living wall, mural, decorative lighting, USB charging station, 
electrical hook-up to allow programming, or a comparable 
amenity proposed by the developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed amenities. 

 Above-and-Beyond Usable Open Space (2) Developers who are able to demonstrate to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council that the proposed Usable 
Open Space goes above-and-beyond the Enhanced Usable Open 
Space may count the space as two Menu Items. 

 Include project narrative or exhibit that lists the proposed 
amenities and describes why the space should be considered 
above-and-beyond Usable Open Space. 

 Public Art Piece Dedicate at least 1% of the total project cost to one major public 
art piece to be centrally located. 

 Public Art Series Dedicate at least 1% of the total project cost to multiple public art 
pieces to be located throughout the development. 

Site Design & Building Orientation (Select at Least Two Menu Items) 
 If Selected Menu Item Description 

 75% Parking Behind Buildings Buildings shall be placed towards the street with 75% of off-street 
parking located to the side or rear of buildings. 

 100% Parking Behind Buildings (1.5) Buildings shall be placed towards the street with 100% of off-
street parking located to the side or rear of buildings. 

 Add Parking Lot Trees Provide one parking lot tree per five spaces.  Parking lot trees 
should be capable of achieving 30% canopy coverage over the 
parking area within 10 years of planting. 

 Rain Gardens Provide bioretention areas, or rain gardens, between every other 
row of parking. 

 Permeable Surface Use permeable concrete and pavers on 15% of the surface 
parking lot. 

 Strategic Parking Submit on of the following Strategic Parking Plans: 
 Parking Reclamation Plan – Create a parking reclamation plan 

that includes specific strategies to reclaim surplus parking 
spaces to expand structures and usable open spaces or create 
new ones.  Developers should anticipate changes in parking 
demand and design their site to create opportunities for 
adaptable reuse. 

 Parking Flex Plan – Create a parking flex plan that shows how 
parking spaces can be temporarily used for something other 
than parking, such as festivals, outdoor dining, community 
gatherings, and other events.  The plan should identify the 
parking spaces and describe how they will be used. 

Exhibit E - Amenity Checklists
Page 2 of 5

amartin
Contractor
1

amartin
Highlight
 two types of seating,

amartin
Highlight
 water feature

amartin
Highlight
furnished play area, dog park

amartin
Highlight
 textured paving,

amartin
Highlight
 decorative lighting

amartin
Highlight
electrical hook-up to allow programming



 Phased Parking Plan – Create a phased parking plan and 
construct parking spaces in phases as demand requires.  Areas 
intended for future parking phases would remain as green 
spaces until converted to parking spaces.  If, after five years, 
future parking spaces have not been constructed, they shall 
become permanent green space. 

 Circle or highlight selected parking plan. 

 Ceremonial Drive Developments over 20 acres or developments that include 
multiple lots/buildings shall provide a grand promenade or 
ceremonial drive with trees planted every 30 feet. 

 Gateway Developments over 20 acres or developments that include 
multiple lots/buildings shall use site layout and building 
placement to create a gateway, frame usable open space, or 
create a view corridor with appropriate terminus. 

 Park Once Environment (1.5) Developments over 10 acres or developments that include 
multiple lots/buildings shall use site layout and building 
placement to create a park once environment. 

 Shared parking agreements between different lots/occupants 
must be in place. 

Building Design (Select at Least Six Menu Items) 
 If Selected Menu Item Description 

 Materials Mix A single material, color, or texture shall not exceed 60% of a 
single facade. 

 Stone Accent All four facades shall include a stone accent in a contrasting color 
and texture from the primary building material.  The combined 
area of the stone accent shall be at least 25% of the vertical 
surface area of all facades. 

 Color Contrast Each facade shall include at least two contrasting colors. 

 Specialty Accent Color and/or material shall be used to highlight entrances of 
multi-tenant buildings.  Specialty accents should reflect the 
personality or character of the occupant. 

 Corner Treatment Developers shall use at least three architectural elements to 
emphasize corners of the buildings: corner entrance, accent 
material, projecting cornice, tower element, enhanced windows, 
cupolas, gables, dormers, balconies, articulation, or a comparable 
element chosen by the developer.  Corner treatments must be 
one of the Menu Items for buildings at key intersections. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed architectural elements. 

 Articulated Public Entrance The primary building entrance shall be visibly prominent from a 
public street.  At least three of the following shall be used: 
recessed facade, projecting facade, raised canopy, taller door 
dimensions, double doors, lighting fixtures on either side of the 
entry, steps or stoops, changes in materials, arches, columns, 
eave treatment, transom windows, or a comparable element 
chosen by the developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed elements. 

 Buildings at Key Intersections Developers should highlight key intersections by using additional 
design elements to create gateways or landmarks.  Buildings at 
key intersections shall include at least three of the following 
features: corner plaza with plantings and seating, corner tower 
form, cupolas, large window openings, sloped or pitched roof 
form, richer colors, seasonal plantings, or a comparable element 
chosen by the developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed features. 

 Roof Profile Variation Developers shall use parapets or another technique to create a 
distinctive roof profile. 

 Articulation Elements Each facade shall include at least three of the following items 
every 60 feet: change in roofline, facade modulation, window 

Exhibit E - Amenity Checklists
Page 3 of 5

amartin
Contractor
1

amartin
Contractor
1

amartin
Contractor
1

amartin
Contractor
1

amartin
Contractor
1

amartin
Contractor
1

amartin
Contractor
1

amartin
Highlight
change in roofline, facade modulation,

amartin
Highlight
recessed facade, projecting facade,

amartin
Highlight
 double doors, lighting fixtures

amartin
Highlight
 changes in materials,

amartin
Highlight
multi-tenant buildings.

amartin
Text Box
we are a single tenant building but we have highlighted the entry

amartin
Text Box
Only the main entry corner has been highlighted



fenestration patterns, vertical columns, and change in material or 
texture. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed items. 

 Enhanced Windows All facades with windows shall include at least two types of 
windows that differ in the style, size, shape, or placement. 

 Canopy Variation Facades shall include multiple types of canopies.  Changes in 
shape, color, or material should be used to highlight an 
architectural feature or particular user while complementing the 
established design theme. 

 It is likely that individual tenants will determine the final design 
of the canopy.  If tenants are unknown at this time, submit an 
exhibit that illustrates variations in shape, color, and material 
within the intended design theme. 

 Design Elements Facades shall include at least three other design elements: 
trellises, towers, overhang eves, banding, pilasters, projecting 
cornices, columns, string courses, rustication, lintels, or a 
comparable element proposed by the developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed design elements. 

Healthy, Smart, and Sustainable Community (Select at Least Two Menu Items) 
 If Selected Menu Item Description 

 Mature Trees Provide mature trees for 30% of required trees.  The locations of 
the mature trees should be focused in usable open spaces and 
along pedestrian paths. 

 Connect to Parks and/or Trails Provide a connection to existing or proposed parks and/or trails.  
The connection should function as a continuation, not just a point 
of access.  The connection shall include appropriate amenities 
such as bike racks, pet waste disposal stations, water fountains, 
misting stations, or a comparable amenity proposed by the 
developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed amenities. 

 Community Garden Provide a community garden and participate in the City’s 
community gardens partnership program. 

 Parking Reclamation Plan Create a parking reclamation plan that includes specific strategies 
to reclaim surplus parking spaces to expand structures and usable 
open spaces or create new ones.  Developers should anticipate 
changes in parking demand and design their site to create 
opportunities for adaptable reuse. 

 Parking Flex Plan Create a parking flex plan that shows how parking spaces can be 
temporarily used for something other than parking, such as 
festivals, outdoor dining, community gatherings, and other 
events.  The plan should identify the parking spaces and describe 
how they will be used. 

 Phased Parking Plan Create a phased parking plan and construct parking spaces in 
phases as demand requires.  Areas intended for future parking 
phases would remain as green space until converted to parking 
spaces.  If, after five years, future parking phases have not been 
constructed, they shall become permanent green space. 

 Green Infrastructure Provide and maintain green infrastructure such as bioretention 
areas (rain gardens), planter boxes, or vegetated buffer strips 
consistent with NCTCOG’s integrated Stormwater Management 
(iSWM) Program. 

 Solar Energy Use solar energy to satisfy 25% or more of on-site energy 
demand. 

 Preserve Open Space Reserve existing natural areas comprising at least 5% of the 
overall project size.  Such areas should incorporate quality non-
invasive tree stands, habitat or riparian areas.  Such areas should 
not include existing floodplain or other areas already protected or 
inherently unsuitable for development. 

Exhibit E - Amenity Checklists
Page 4 of 5

amartin
Highlight
and change i

amartin
Highlight
in

amartin
Highlight
texture. 



 70% Native Plants Use native and drought tolerant species for at least 70% of 
planting materials. 

 Wi-Fi (.5) Provide Free Wi-Fi in common areas. 

 USB Charging Stations (.5) Provide USB charging stations in usable open spaces. 

 Smart Parking (.5) Provide web-connected sensors in pavement that help people 
find and/or reserve a parking space. 

 Ride-Sharing Drop-Off (.5) Provide designated spaces for ride-sharing pick-ups and drop-
offs. 

 Permeable Paving (.5) Use permeable pavement on 15% of the parking lot. 

 Green Roofs (.5) Provide a green roof that is at least 50% of total roof area. 

 Living Wall (.5) Provide a living wall that is at least 60% of the area of the facade 
on which it is constructed. 

 Recycling Program (.5) Institute a mandatory recycling program for occupants.  Provide 
recycling bins in addition to trash bins in common areas. 

 30% Native Plants (.5) Use native and drought tolerant species for at least 30% of 
planting materials. 

 Pollinator Friendly Flowers (.5) Use native plants that attract bees, butterflies, moths, and 
hummingbirds for at least 20% of required landscape materials. 

Alternative Compliance 

The Menu Items listed do not represent an exhaustive list.  Developers may propose a comparable item not listed.  If developers are 
able to prove that the proposed item meets the intent of Appendix F, Staff may recommend that the proposed item be counted as a 
Menu Item.  Indicate the proposed item, identify which of the four elements the proposed item will count towards, and provide a 
brief description. 

 If Selected Proposed Item/Element Description 

   

   

   

   

 

Menu Item Summary Table 
Element # of Menu Items 

Usable Open Space & Pedestrian Walkways  

Site Design & Building Orientation  

Building Design  

Healthy, Smart, Sustainable Community  

Alternative Compliance  

Total Menu Items:  

 

Exhibit E - Amenity Checklists
Page 5 of 5

amartin
Contractor
1

amartin
Contractor
1

amartin
Contractor
1

amartin
Contractor
1

amartin
Text Box
Curbless pedestrian focused central street design with a close-able section to create a plaza space 

amartin
Text Box
Curbless pedestrian focused streets 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10564 Name: S200901 - Kalterra Phase 1

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:11/2/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/9/2020

Title: S200901 - Site Plan - Kalterra Phase 1 (City Council District 2).  Site Plan for a multi-family
development of 412 units in four buildings on 11.74 acres.  Tract 7 of  the William Reed Survey,
Abstract No. 1193 and Tract 1.1 of the Frederick Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 395, City of Grand
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-397, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and
generally located on the northwest corner of SH-161 and Forum Dr.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Appendix W Amenities.pdf

Exhibit F - Enhanced Screening.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
S200901 - Site Plan - Kalterra Phase 1 (City Council District 2).  Site Plan for a multi-family development of 412
units in four buildings on 11.74 acres.  Tract 7 of  the William Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1193 and Tract 1.1 of the
Frederick Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 395, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-397, within the
SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located on the northwest corner of SH-161 and Forum Dr.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Site Plan for a multi-family development of 412 units in four buildings on 11.74 acres. Tract 7 of the William
Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1193 and Tract 1.1 of the Frederick Dohme Survey, Abstract No. 395, City of Grand
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-397, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally
located on the northwest corner of SH-161 and Forum Dr.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10564, Version: 1

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct a multi-family development on 11.74 acres. Site Plan approval by City
Council is required for any project involving multi-family use or within a Planned Development District.
Development at this location requires City Council approval of a Site Plan because the property is intended for
multi-family use and zoned PD-397.

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified
Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques. The UDC
identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional standards,
landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-397 Undeveloped

South PD-382 Multi-Family Under Construction

PD-294 Undeveloped

West PD-397 Undeveloped

East PD-294D Undeveloped

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

This Site Plan is Phase 1 of a larger horizontal mixed-use development on 55.5 acres. This phase includes 412
multi-family units in four buildings and the associated parking and amenities. The primary entrance for the
whole development is off the SH-161 frontage road.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

The subject property is zoned PD-397 with a base zoning of Multi-Family Three District; development is
subject to the standards for PD-397 and for Multi-Family Three District in the Unified Development Code
(UDC). The following table evaluates the density and dimensional standards of the proposed development.
The proposal meets the density and dimensional requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area Sq. Ft. 12,000 511,394 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 100 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 120 120 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 30 30 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 45 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 60 52 Yes

Max. Density (DUA) 40 35.09 Yes

Max. One Bedroom (%) 70 60 Yes

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10564, Version: 1

Parking

The table below evaluates the parking requirements. The proposal meets the required parking, garages, and
carports.

Table 3: Parking Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Total Parking Spaces 536 536 Yes

Garage 10% 20% Yes

Carport 20% 20% Yes

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Appendix W of the UDC. The table below
summarizes these requirements.  The proposal meets the landscape and screening requirements.

Table 4: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.) 76,724 148,966 Yes

Trees 154 154 Yes

Shrubs 1,534 1,550 Yes

Dumpster Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Yes

Exterior Building Materials

The exterior finish materials include brick, stucco, and fiber cement siding. The proposed building elevations
also meet the recommended design and building materials in Appendix W.

Appendix W Amenities

Appendix W requires a certain number of amenities from categories such as environmentally friendly building
materials, construction techniques, or other features, high quality features or design, and technology. The
proposal meets the requirements for amenities.

VARIANCES:

· Perimeter Fence and Gated Entry - Appendix W requires that multi-family developments contain
security gates at all entrances to the complex. The proposal does not include a perimeter fence with
gated entry. As an alternative, the applicant is proposing to secure individual buildings and fence of
internal courtyards.

ANALYSIS:

The Site Plan includes changes from the approved Concept Plan that revises the internal street layout and may
affect development walkability.

· The reconfigured buildings will not fully enclose and screen surface parking from the internal street as
shown on the concept plan.

· There are two parallel drives between each building that breaks off the consistent street edge and may
increase potential conflicts between traffic and people on foot.

The applicant has remedied the changes by proposing enhanced plantings and decorative metal walls to screen
parking and extend the building edge. Staff believes the plantings and screening should assist to resolve some

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10564, Version: 1

of the noted design issues.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is generally in support of the proposal. Although the layout is revised, the applicant has made changes to
make the site plan more in line with the Concept Plan intent. Staff recommends approval with the following
conditions:

1. The applicant shall coordinate with the designated representative of the City of Grand Prairie Police
Department to finalize the plan to secure individual buildings and courtyard areas; and

2. The location, design, and character of the enhanced screening (landscape and metal screening walls)
along the internal street shall be consistent with what is depicted on the site plan and Exhibit F -
Enhanced Screening, as determined by the Director of Planning and Development or designee.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



Ro
bi

ns
on

 R
d

S Hwy 161 Sb  

Mayfield Rd

S Forum Dr

S H
wy

 16
1 N

b  

S Hwy 161 Svc Sb Rd

W
at

er
wo

od
 D

r S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd
Ikea Pl

Qu
an

na
h D

r

Ik
ea

 W
ayWest Grove Ln

Hopi Trl

Kalgary Ln

Oryx Ln

Plains Ct

Sa
ra

 Ja
ne

 Pk
wy

Brazos Ct

Swenson Ct

Paducah Ln

Dayton Ln

Cap Rock Ln

Crosbyton Ln
Es

pl
an

ade

D

ove Cir

Zion Hill  

Panorama Ln

Edgewood Dr

Hacienda Ct

Fe
rn

cr
es

t C
t

CASE LOCATION MAP
Site Plan - S200901
Kalterra Phase 1 ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦20

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 2 of 2



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 1 of 11



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 2 of 11



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 3 of 11



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 4 of 11



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 5 of 11



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 6 of 11



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 7 of 11



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 8 of 11



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 9 of 11



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 10 of 11



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 11 of 11



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 1 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 2 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 3 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 4 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 5 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 6 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 7 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 8 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 9 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 10 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 11 of 12



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 12 of 12



Category 1: Environmentally-friendly building materials, construction techniques, or other features 
Tier I (Pick Three) 

 i. “Smart” technology which automatically controls functions such as lights and thermostat to reduce energy loads during the day or at times of 
peak energy usage. 

 ii. Use of solar or other form of alternative energy to satisfy approximately 25% or more of on-site energy demand. 

 iii. Landscaping plan that makes use of native, drought resistant plantings not requiring the use of irrigation. In lieu of sod or turf, drought resistant 
plantings may be combined with coordinated hardscapes of high design quality and appearance for the purposes of meeting Tier I requirements. 

 iv. Reservation of existing natural areas comprising 5% or more of the overall project size, with such areas incorporating quality non-invasive tree 
stands, habitat or riparian areas, and not including existing floodplain or other areas already protected or inherently unsuitable for development. 

 v. Permeable pavement for 10% or more of total paving. 

 vi. Electric car charging station (minimum 2). 

 vii. High efficiency windows on residential and common buildings. 

 viii. Stormwater or grey water reclamation for on-site reuse equivalent to a minimum 100% of irrigation in accordance with section 8.4.1.11. 

Tier II (Pick Four) 

 i. Integration of commercial/retail/office space or live-work units. 

 ii. Permeable pavement for 5% or more of total paving. 

 iii. Roofing material with a minimum total solar reflectance of 0.70 and a minimum thermal emittance of 0.75 when measured using ASTM testing 
methods endorsed by the North Central Texas Council of Governments. 

 iv. Significant use of recycled or locally-sourced materials.  Locally-sourced is defined as a material having its origin within 50 miles of the project. 

 v. Preservation of existing non-invasive trees with a combined canopy square footage area totaling at least 5% of the overall project size (trees 
can come from any portion of the site other than areas which are already projected or inherently unsuitable for development, such as 
floodplain). 

 vi. Qualified recycling program available to every resident. 

 vii. Walking/jogging trails within the development.  Where possible, trails should utilize existing natural areas and provide linkages to existing or 
future area trail networks. 

 viii. Stormwater or grey water reclamation for on-site reuse equivalent to a minimum 50% of irrigation in accordance with section 8.4.1.11. 

Tier III (Pick Five) 

 i. Additional insulation. 

 ii. LED or low-wattage lighting. 

 iii. Bicycle parking. 

 iv. Use of additional native plantings totaling 10% or more of minimum landscape requirements. 

 v. Stormwater or grey water reclamation for on-site reuse in accordance with section 8.4.1.11. 

 vi. Solar-ready building design. 

 vii. Outdoor recreation spaces with communal features such as furniture, landscaping, gardens, televisions, movie screens, BBQ grills, pergolas, 
areas for fitness or sports activities, and interactive water features, not including standard unheated swimming pools, which are designed for 
water conservation or reuse. 

 viii. Big and small dog parks. 

Category 2: High-quality features or designs 
Tier I (Pick Four) 

 i. Granite countertops or similar in kitchens and bathrooms. 

 ii. Upgraded flooring throughout, consisting of masonry tile, such as porcelain or travertine, wood-look tile, true hardwood, stained concrete, or 
deep pile carpeting. 

 iii. Minimum 10 foot ceilings in living areas, kitchen, dining rooms, hallways, bathrooms and bedrooms. 

 iv. Upgraded woodwork throughout each unit, such as crown molding, wainscot, chair rails, window and door moldings. 

 v. Upgraded cabinetry. 

Tier II (Pick Five) 

 i. Arched forms separating rooms and living spaces. 

 ii. Upgraded light fixtures including recessed lighting or indirect lighting. 

 iii. Walk-in closets. 

 iv. Jetted bathtubs. 

 v. Upgraded bathroom and kitchen hardware, including faucets and sinks. 

 vi. Full-size stainless steel major appliances (oven, range, refrigerator, dishwasher, microwave oven). 

 vii. 8 foot doors leading to each room of a unit. 

Category 3: Technology (Provide All) 

 a. Integrated USB ports within all units. 

 b. App-enabled functionality for door locks, lighting, thermostat, appliances, or other electronics. 

 c. App-enabled communication between residents and management for the reporting of problems related to mechanical failures, safety 
concerns, or noise issues. 

 d. Wi-fi internet access provided to users of common amenities such as clubhouse, pool, walking trails, and fitness area. 

 

Exhibit E - Appendix W Amenities
Page 1 of 1

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

SBrooks
Stamp

sware
Highlight

sware
Highlight

sware
Highlight

sware
Highlight



Exhibit F - Enhanced Screening
Page 1 of 1



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10565 Name: S200603 - Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:11/2/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/9/2020

Title: S200603 - Site Plan - Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for Hunter
Ferrell Logistics Park, a development with a 210,856 sq. ft. warehouse building on 13.62 acres.
Tracts 14.2, Isreal Jennings Survey, Abstract No. 679, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas,
zoned Light Industrial, and addressed as 2400 W Hunter Ferrell Rd.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Site Lines.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title
S200603 - Site Plan - Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for Hunter Ferrell Logistics
Park, a development with a 210,856 sq. ft. warehouse building on 13.62 acres.  Tracts 14.2, Isreal Jennings Survey,
Abstract No. 679, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial, and addressed as 2400 W
Hunter Ferrell Rd.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Site Plan for Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park, a development with a 210,856 sq. ft. warehouse building on 13.62
acres. Tracts 14.2, Isreal Jennings Survey, Abstract No. 679, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas,
zoned Light Industrial, and addressed as 2400 W Hunter Ferrell Rd.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10565, Version: 1

The applicant intends to construct a 210,856 sq. ft. warehouse on 13.62 acres. Site Plan approval by City
Council is required for any project involving industrial use. Development at this location requires City Council
approval of a Site Plan because the property is intended for industrial use.

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified
Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques. The UDC
identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional standards,
landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts.

Project Update

The Planning and Zoning Commission tabled this item on June 22, 2020 to allow the applicant and staff
additional time to coordinate with the City of Irving. Since then, the applicant has reduced the project area
from 33 acres to 13.62 acres, eliminated the second warehouse, and reconfigured the site so that the driveways
align with the existing median cuts as required by the City of Irving.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North City of Irving Mobile Home Park

South Light Industrial Undeveloped, Floodway

West Light Industrial Park Trailhead, Undeveloped

East Light Industrial Auto Related Use, Undeveloped

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The 13.2-acre site is accessible by two points on W Hunter Ferrell Rd. The proposed warehouse building is
210,856 sq. ft. and has a loading dock on the north side of the building with 40 dock doors. The site plan
includes 184 parking spaces and 45 trailer parking spaces. The parking area west of the building is designated
as future auto or trailer parking and includes 194 auto parking spaces. The proposed development is
speculative, which means that the future tenant is unknown. The future tenant’s need will determine the timing
of construction and configuration of the future parking area.

The proposal includes an open space amenity with trails, benches, and an active water feature on the west side
of the property. The trail will connect to the existing trail at the Lone Star Trailhead to the west and the
regional trail along Hunter Ferrell Rd.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

Development is subject to the Light Industrial standards in the UDC. The tables below evaluate the density and
dimensional standards of the proposed development. The proposal meets the density and dimensional
requirements.

Table A: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 593,127 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 1,253 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 508.97 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 30 Yes

Side Setback (Ft.) 30 30 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 50 46.5 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio 1:1 0.35:1 Yes

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10565, Version: 1
Table A: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 593,127 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 1,253 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 508.97 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 30 Yes

Side Setback (Ft.) 30 30 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 50 46.5 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio 1:1 0.35:1 Yes

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 and Appendix X of the UDC. The
proposal substantially complies with landscape and screening requirements.

Table 3: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.) 59,312 98,969 Yes

Trees 131 182 No

Shrubs 1,186 1,705 Yes

Foundation Plantings Along Primary Facades Along Primary Facades No

Entrance Plantings At Building Entrance At Building Entrance Yes

Building Materials and Design

Industrial buildings greater than 50,000 sq. ft. are subject to the requirements in Appendix X of the UDC.
Appendix X requires that primary facades include at least three design elements and secondary facades include
at least two design elements.  The proposed building elevations meet the design requirements.

Table 4: Building Design Elements

Facade Type a. b. c. d. e. f. g. h. i. Total ElementsMeets

North Primaryx x x 3 Yes

South Secondaryx x 2 Yes

West Primaryx x x 3 Yes

East Primaryx x x 3 Yes

Table 4: Summary of Building Design Elements

Letter Primary Facades Element Secondary Facades Element

a. Masonry Accents Masonry Accent

b. Glass - 15% Cornice Projection

c. Awning Windows - 30%

d. Cornice Projection Articulation

e. Articulation

f. Accent Lighting

g. Colonnade

h. Wing Wall

i. Windows - 30%

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10565, Version: 1

VARIANCES:

City Council may approve variances to Appendix X if the applicant demonstrates that the proposal meets the
intent of the ordinance and that the alternative design or measure provides an equal or greater level of quality
and standard of development as mandated by the regulations. As a part of this Site Plan, the applicant is
requesting the variances listed below.

1. Truck Docks Location - Truck docks are prohibited along any primary facade.

2. Row of Parking Between the Street and Building - No more than two rows of vehicle parking shall be
allowed between a street and building facade.

3. Parking/Storage of Heavy Trucks or Trailers Along Hunter Ferrell - Parking of heavy trucks or areas
intended for parking/storage of trailers shall not be located adjacent to a primary building facade or
street.

4. Parking/Storage of Trailers in Future Parking Area - Areas intended for parking/storage of trailers shall
not be located adjacent to a primary building facade.

5. Tree Preservation Requirements - Appendix X requires that developers submit a tree survey and
preserves a minimum of 30% of the total existing caliper inches. The applicant has not submitted a tree
survey.

In the applicant’s original proposal, the truck dock doors and trailer parking were located south of the building
and would not have been visible from Hunter Ferrell Rd. The City of Irving requires the driveways to align
with existing median cuts. In order to comply with this requirement, the applicant reconfigured the site and
relocated the truck docks and trailer parking area to the north of the building.

The applicant is providing a double row of street trees along the street, an enhanced planting area, and a
masonry screening wall. The additional row of trees and additional plantings are intended to serve as a
compensatory measure for the variances requested.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following conditions:

1. The applicant shall coordinate with the Parks Department to connect the proposed walking trails to the
existing trail west of the property. The design of the connection, including the materials, shall meet the
Parks, Arts, and Recreation Department’s requirements. The applicant shall construct this connection in
conjunction with the proposed trail and activation feature.

2. The future parking area shall not be used for parking/storing trailers.

3. All construction shall comply with the latest adopted building codes, specifically the required distance
between the building and property line. This can be accomplished by establishing a no-build easement
to the south on City property or by reducing the building and/or reconfiguring the site. Before applying
for a building permit, the applicant shall resolve this issue.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



W Hunter Ferrell Rd

M
ac

ar
th

ur
 B

lvd

No Official Name

W
rangler St

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number S200603
Hunter Ferrell Logistics Park ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

§̈¦30

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit E - Site Lines
Page 1 of 1



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10566 Name: CP200801 - Cottages at Dechman

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:11/2/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/9/2020

Title: CP200801 - Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City Council District 2).  Concept Plan for the
Cottages at Dechman, a multi-family development with a mixture of attached and detached units on
15.91 acres.  Tract 2 of Leonidas O'Gwinn Survey, Abstract No. 1105, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, zoned PD-20, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located at the
northwest corner of Dechman Dr and the IH-20 frontage road.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Concept Plan.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title

CP200801 - Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City Council District 2).  Concept Plan for the Cottages at
Dechman, a multi-family development with a mixture of attached and detached units on 15.91 acres.  Tract 2 of
Leonidas O'Gwinn Survey, Abstract No. 1105, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-20,
within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located at the northwest corner of Dechman Dr and
the IH-20 frontage road.

Presenter

Savannah Ware , AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Concept Plan for the Cottages at Dechman, a multi-family development with a mixture of attached and
detached units on 15.91 acres. Tract 2 of Leonidas O'Gwinn Survey, Abstract No. 1105, City of Grand Prairie,
Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-20, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located at the
northwest corner of Dechman Dr and the IH-20 frontage road.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct a multi-family development on 15.91 acres. The Unified Development Code
(UDC) requires City Council approval of a Concept Plan for Planned Development Districts. The subject
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10566, Version: 1

(UDC) requires City Council approval of a Concept Plan for Planned Development Districts. The subject
property is zoned PD-20 which was approved without a Concept Plan. Concept Plans are designed to expedite
the development process by working out site design issues prior to design of a project and assuring compliance
with the Comprehensive Plan,

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-20 Fish Creek Forrest Preserve

South PD-26 Commercial, Undeveloped

PD-210 Single Family Residential

West PD-20 Fish Creek Forrest Preserve

East PD-19 Multi-Family Residential

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The proposal is an example of Hybrid Housing, also known as build-to-rent homes, which combines elements
of traditional single family and multi-family development. Hybrid Housing includes a mixture of detached and
attached units on a single lot. Maintenance of individual units, common areas, and landscaping is the
responsibility of a single entity.

The Concept Plan depicts 142 units at a density of 8.9 dwelling units per acre. The 15.91-acre site is accessible
by a single point off Dechman Drive.  The office, fitness center, and pool are located at the entrance.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

The subject property is zoned PD-20 and will be developed under the Multi-Family One (MF-1) District
standards.  City Council approval of a Site Plan is required.

As configured, the site layout may require a variance from the UDC minimum emergency access and gated
entry requirements at the site plan stage. The Development Review Committee (DRC) is generally amenable to
this variance if individual units are sprinklered. DRC will include this as a recommended condition of site plan
approval.

ANALYSIS:

The City of Grand Prairie does not have standards in place for this type of housing product. Staff and the City
Council Development Committee (CCDC) discussed possible opportunities to regulate Hybrid Housing and
address concerns with design, building orientation of units along the right-of-way, screening, and parking.
These discussions took place during the July 21, 2020 and September 21, 2020 CCDC meetings. On October
26, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a text amendment to Appendix W to
address Hybrid Housing. Since the applicant submitted the Concept Plan request before the text amendment
has been approved by City Council, the new standards will not apply to this development.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff suggested that the applicant try to adhere to the upcoming hybrid housing requirements if at all possible.
The applicant has submitted the attached concept plan. Noting the applicants vested rights, the Development
Review Committee (DRC) generally supports the request.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10566, Version: 1

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



S C
ar

rie
r P

kw
y

Westchase Dr

E Ih 20 Eb  
E Ih 20 Wb  

Salem
St

E Bardin Rd

De
ch

m
an

 D
r

W Ih 20 Wb  

E Crossland Blvd

W Ih 20 Eb  

E Westchester Pkwy

Edgeview Dr

Winston St Sierra Dr

Lucena Ct

Fish Creek Rd

Kaylie St

Parkview Dr

Parkcrest Dr

VerdeW
oods

Salisbury Dr

Winding Fo
re

st
Dr

Ro
bi

n D
r

CoronadoDr

Verde Woods

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number CP200801
Cottages at Dechman ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦20

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Concept Plan
Page 1 of 1



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10567 Name: MTP200801 - Cottages at Dechman

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:11/2/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/9/2020

Title: MTP200801 - Amendment to Thoroughfare Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City Council District 2).
Amendment to the Master Thoroughfare Plan to remove an unnamed collector from the Master
Thoroughfare Plan.  The unnamed collector creates an additional connection from Fish Creek
Rd/Dechman Dr to the Interstate 20 WB Frontage Rd.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title

MTP200801 - Amendment to Thoroughfare Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City Council District 2).  Amendment
to the Master Thoroughfare Plan to remove an unnamed collector from the Master Thoroughfare Plan.  The
unnamed collector creates an additional connection from Fish Creek Rd/Dechman Dr to the Interstate 20 WB
Frontage Rd.

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Amendment to the Master Thoroughfare Plan to remove an unnamed collector from the Master Thoroughfare
Plan. The unnamed collector creates an additional connection from Fish Creek Rd/Dechman Dr to the
Interstate 20 WB Frontage Rd.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the request is to remove an unnamed collector from the Master Thoroughfare Plan.

ANALYSIS:

The Master Thoroughfare Plan (MTP) identifies an unnamed Collector which creates an additional connection
from Fish Creek Rd./ Dechman Dr. to the Interstate 20 WB Frontage Road. This segment is located along the

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10567, Version: 1

border of the Dallas County floodway and a vacant lot within PD-20.

The Collector is being addressed due to developer interest in the vacant lot. The roadway is not necessary for
the site’s operation and, therefore, is not being considered for construction by the developer. Moreover, the
developer is not wishing to dedicate the required 70’ right-of-way necessary to build the roadway.

As required by the Unified Development Code, the developer of the vacant lot has provided a traffic impact
analysis (TIA) identifying operations of the site and nearby intersections at buildout of the property. The TIA
found that there would be no significant impact to the existing roadways and intersections following
construction of the new development without the unnamed Collector.

Data was collected for the TIA included detoured traffic from the ongoing I-20 frontage road construction.
Once the intersections of the I-20 Frontage and Carrier Parkway are completed, traffic volumes are anticipated
to be reduced.

The recommendation of the TIA is that the roadway be removed from the MTP and that the project moves
forward. City staff agrees with the recommendation.

Staff does not believe that the unnamed Collector would create additional development potential in the area.
The parcel on the opposite side of the proposed development is Dallas County-owned floodway. There would
be a considerable cost to acquire and develop this land with potentially significant impact to the existing
floodway.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10568 Name: Z200401A - Heritage Towne Amendment

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:11/2/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/9/2020

Title: Z200401A - Zoning Change - Heritage Towne Amendment (City Council District 6).  A Planned
Development Amendment for Heritage Towne, a development on 76.96 acres which includes single-
family, multi-family, commercial, and open space uses. The purpose of the request is to add additional
commercial zoning along Davis Road. Tracts 186713 and 186714, J Lawrence Survey, Abstract No.
616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas.  Zoned PD-399 and addressed as 2925 Davis Drive.
Generally located north of Hwy 287, and east of HWY 360.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Boundary Description.pdf

Exhibit B - Zoning Exhibit.pdf

Exhibit C - Conceptual Renderings.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title

Z200401A - Zoning Change - Heritage Towne Amendment (City Council District 6).  A Planned Development
Amendment for Heritage Towne, a development on 76.96 acres which includes single-family, multi-family,
commercial, and open space uses. The purpose of the request is to add additional commercial zoning along
Davis Road. Tracts 186713 and 186714, J Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis
County, Texas.  Zoned PD-399 and addressed as 2925 Davis Drive. Generally located north of Hwy 287, and
east of HWY 360.

Presenter

Jonathan Tooley, Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

A Planned Development Amendment for Heritage Towne, a development on 76.96 acres which includes single-
family, multi-family, commercial, and open space uses. The purpose of the request is to add additional
commercial zoning along Davis Road. Tracts 186713 and 186714, J Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City
of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas. Zoned PD-399 and addressed as 2925 Davis Drive. Generally located

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10568, Version: 1

north of Hwy 287, and east of HWY 360.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the request is to amend Planned Development 399 to reduce the amount of land zoned for multi
-family and increase the amount of land zoned for commercial along Davis Drive.

Table 1: Zoning Comparison of PD-399 and PD-399A

Base Zoning DistrictExisting Acreage Proposed Acreage Change

General Retail 3.81 6.6 + 2.79

Multi-Family 32.93 30.14 - 2.79

Single Family 37.21 37.21 -

Agriculture 0 0 -

Open Space 3.01 3.01 -

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 2: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-322A Gas Wells, Single-Family

South Agriculture; ETJ Residential, Commercial, Cemetery

West Agriculture Undeveloped

East Agriculture Undeveloped

HISTORY:

· April 21, 2020: City Council approved a zoning change for Planned Development 399 - Heritage
Towne, a single-family, multi-family, and commercial development located on 76.96 acres (Case
Number Z200401).

· September 16, 2008: City Council approved a zoning change (Case Number Z080701) which created
Planned Development-328 District Single Family Detached Residential, Multi-Family, General Retail,
and Mixed Use for Architecturally Integrated Residential above Retail uses.

ANALYSIS:

The addition of General Retail along the Davis Drive frontage will help create more opportunities for
commercial development along the SH-360 Corridor. Additionally, the applicant wishes to donate one lot to the
City for the future expansion of a fire station that will service the southern sector of the City. Staff supports the
Planned Development amendment believing that the addition of commercial will bring extra tax base and
commercial opportunities to the area.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number Z200401A

´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

S
H

 360
287

D
AVIS

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 3



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 3

LEGAL LAND DESCRIPTION:

BEING 76.960 acres (3,352,391 square feet) of land in the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract Number 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas;

said 76.960 acres (3,352,391 square feet) of land described in a Warranty Deed to Ellis Joint Venture (hereinafter referred to as Ellis Joint Venture

tract), as recorded in Instrument Number 21141507, Official Public Records, Ellis County, Texas (O.P.R.E.C.T.), and being all of that certain tract of land

described in a General Warranty Deed to Ellis Joint Venture (hereinafter referred to as Ellis Joint Venture 2 tract), as recorded in Volume 2805, Page

577, Deed Records, Ellis County, Texas (D.R.E.C.T.) and being all of that certain tract of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to Ellis Joint

Venture (hereinafter referred to as Ellis Joint Venture 3 tract), Volume 2564, Page 281, D.R.E.C.T.; said 76.960 acres (3,352,391 square feet) of land

being more particularly described, by metes and bounds, as follows:

BEGINNING at a concrete monument found for the Northwesterly corner of the said Ellis Joint Venture tract, same being the Northerly corner of the

William Telford, and wife, Kay Telford (hereinafter referred to as Telford tract), as recorded in Volume 738, Page 371, Deed Records, Ellis County,

Texas (D.R.E.C.T.), same also being in the Southerly line of TEXDEVCO GP, LLC, (hereinafter referred to as TEXDEVCO tract), as recorded in

Instrument Number 1900187, O.P.R.E.C.T.;

THENCE North 64 degrees 23 minutes 15 seconds East with the common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said TEXDEVCO tract, passing

at a distance of 424.28 feet, the Southeasterly corner of said TEXDEVCO tract, same being the Southwesterly corner of that certain tract of land

described in a Special Warranty Deed to WM SUB GT, LP (hereinafter referred to as WM SUB GT tract), as recorded in Volume 2805, Page 57,

D.R.E.C.T., continue with said course and the common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said WM SUB GT tract for a total distance of

707.27 feet to a
 
to a five-eighths inch iron rod with a plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" set;

THENCE North 64 degrees 53 minutes 00 seconds East with the common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said WM SUB GT tract, same

being a corner for said WM SUB GT tract, for a distance of 581.99 feet to a five eighths inch capped iron rod stamped "MYCOSKIE" found for corner;

THENCE South 88 degrees 32 minutes 15 seconds East with a common line between said Ellis Joint Venture Tract and WM SUB GT tract, passing at

distance of 459.30 feet, the Southeasterly corner of said WM SUB GT tract, same being the Southwesterly corner of that certain tract of land described

in a Special Warranty Deed to Nehemiah Partners, L.P. (hereinafter referred to as Nehemiah tract), as recorded in Volume 1661, Page 104, D.R.E.C.T.,

from which a one-half inch capped iron rod found stamped "RPLS 5857" bears South 11 degrees 23 minutes 30 seconds East a distance of 0.57 feet,

and continue with said course and the common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said Nehemiah tract for a total distance of 1150.28 feet

to a concrete monument stamped "826-3" found for corner;

THENCE South 51 degrees 10 minutes 45 seconds West for a distance of 887.19 feet with a common line between Ellis Joint Venture and that certain

tract of land described in a General Warranty Deed to the United States of America (hereinafter referred to as USA tract) as recorded in Volume 676,

Page 506, Deed Records, Ellis County, Texas, to a concrete monument stamped "826-4" found for corner;

THENCE South 16 degrees 29 minutes 04 seconds West with a common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said USA tract for a distance of

639.32 feet to a concrete monument stamped "826-5" found for corner;

THENCE South 25 degrees 05 minutes 36 seconds East with a common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said USA tract for a distance of

532.26 feet to a concrete monument stamped "826-6" found for corner;

THENCE South 15 degrees 22 minutes 38 seconds West with a common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said USA tract for a distance of

1151.24 feet to a concrete monument stamped "826-7" found for corner;

THENCE South 18 degrees 09 minutes 07 seconds East with a common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said USA tract for a distance of

461.40 feet to a Texas Department of Transportation monument on the Northeasterly line of that certain tract of land described in a deed to the State

of Texas (hereinafter referred to as State of Texas R.O.W.), Volume 809, Page 981, D.R.E.C.T., from which a one-half inch capped iron rod stamped

"AREA SURVEYING" found, bears South 77 degrees 03 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 3.62 feet;

THENCE North 55 degrees 36 minutes 03 seconds West with a common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said State of Texas R.O.W., a

distance of 441.91 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found at the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right, whose chord bears North 42 degrees 29

minutes 40 seconds West, a distance of 303.95 feet, from which a one-half inch iron rod found bears North 83 degrees 02 minutes 32 seconds East, a

distance of 4.93 feet;

THENCE Northwesterly with the common line between said Ellis Joint Venture and said State of Texas R.O.W. and with said non-tangent curve to the

right having a radius of 670.00 feet, through a central angle of 26 degrees 13 minutes 14 seconds, for an arc distance of 306.61 feet a five-eighths inch

iron rod with a plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" set for corner;

THENCE North 29 degrees 23 minutes 03 seconds West with a common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said State of Texas R.O.W., a

distance of 204.43 feet to a Texas Department of Transportation monument, from which a one-half inch capped iron rod stamped "AREA SURVEYING"

found bears North 67 degrees 52 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 6.69 feet;

THENCE South 60 degrees 19 minutes 57 seconds West with a common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said State of Texas R.O.W., a

distance of 44.88 feet to a mag nail set for corner, same being the Southeast corner of that certain tract of land described in a deed to Joe Bowers and

Jeff Hansen (hereinafter referred to as Bowers tract), as recorded in Volume 2399, Page 2279, D.R.E.C.T., same also being in Davis Road, previously

known as St. Paul Britton Road (variable width right-of-way);

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 3



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 3 of 3

MICHAEL DAN DAVIS
4838

ST

ATE
OF TEXAS

LAND SURVE
YO

R

R

E
G
I S T E R

E

D

P
R

O
F E S S I O

N

A
L

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE TO:

Ellis Joint Venture, AeroFirma and/or Assigns, Alliant National Title Insurance Company, and their affiliated entities, successors and assigns;

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based, were made in accordance with 2016 Minimum Standard Detail

Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title Surveys jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS 2016.

The field work was completed on November 27, 2019.

__________________________________________________

Michael Dan Davis DATE:

Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 4838

BANNISTER ENGINEERING, LLC

T.B.P.L.S. REGISTRATION NO. 10193823

240 NORTH MITCHELL ROAD

MANSFIELD, TEXAS 76063

Office (817) 842-2094

THENCE North 29 degrees 25 minutes 56 seconds West with a common line between said Ellis Joint Venture Tract and said Bowers tract and with said

Davis Road, a distance of 103.37 feet to a mag nail set, same being the Southeasterly corner of the aforesaid Ellis Joint Venture 2 tract, from which a

one-half inch capped iron rod stamped "AREA SURVEYING" found bears North 74 degrees 34 minutes 55 seconds East, a distance of 19.83 feet;

THENCE North 29 degrees 26 minutes 34 seconds West with the common line between said Ellis Joint Venture 2 tract and said Bowers tract and with

said Davis Road, pass at a distance of 142.26 feet, the Northeast corner of said Bowers tract, same being an angle point in the Easterly line of that

certain tract of land described in a deed to James Edmund Kemp, Jr., Judy Anne Kemp Amonett, Carolyn Kemp Wittenbraker and John Stacy Kemp,

Beneficiaries under the Will of Kames E. Kemp, deceased (hereinafter referred to as Kemp tract), as recorded in Volume 2171, Page 510, D.R.E.C.T.

and continue with said course and the common line between said Ellis Joint Venture 2 tract and said Kemp tract and with said Davis Road for a total

distance of 275.05 feet to a mag nail set for the Northwesterly corner of said Ellis Joint Venture 2 tract, same being the Southwesterly corner of that

cetain tract of land described in a General Warranty Deed to Carlo Restrepo, (hereinafter referred to as Restrepo tract), as recorded in Volume 2805,

Page 570, D.R.E.C.T.,

THENCE North 75 degrees 00 minutes 04 seconds East, departing said Davis Road and said Kemp tract and with the common line between said Ellis

Joint Venture 2 tract and Restrepo tract, pass at a distance of 21.38 feet a one-half inch iron rod with plastic cap found and continue with said course

and continue with the common line between said Ellis Joint Venture 2 tract and Restrepo tract for a total distance of 254.19 feet to a one-half inch iron

rod found for the Southeasterly corner of said Restrepo tract, same being a Westerly line of said Ellis Joint Venture Tract;

THENCE North 29 degrees 25 minutes 05 seconds West with a common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said Restrepo tract, a distance

of 177.07 feet to a one-half inch iron rod found for corner, same being the Northeasterly corner of said Restrepo tract;

THENCE South 75 degrees 03 minutes 13 seconds West with a common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said Restrepo tract, from which

a one-half inch iron rod found a distance of 232.37 feet, and continue on said course for a total distance of 254.28 feet to a mag nail set for corner in a

Easterly line of said Kemp tract, and in Davis Road, same being the Northwesterly corner of said Restrepo tract;

THENCE North 29 degrees 26 minutes 40 seconds West with a common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said Kemp tract, a distance of

534.95 feet to a mag nail set for corner, same being the Southwesterly corner said Ellis Joint Venture 3 tract, from which a one-half inch capped iron

rod found bears North 64 degrees 06 minutes 46 seconds East a distance of 21.97 feet,

THENCE North 29 degrees 30 minutes 55 seconds West with the common line between said Ellis Joint Venture 3 tract and said Kemp tract, a distance

of 279.24 feet to a mag nail set for corner, same being the Northwesterly corner of said Ellis Joint Venture 3 tract, same being the Southwesterly line

of said Telford tract;

THENCE North 64 degrees 05 minutes 22 seconds East, departing the Easterly line of said Kemp tract and departing said Davis Road and with the

common line between said Ellis Joint Venture 3 tract and said Telford tract, pass at a distance of 22.64 feet, a concrete monument found and continue

with said course and the common line between said Ellis Joint Venture 3 tract and said Telford tract for a total distance of 312.95 feet to a five-eighths

inch iron rod with a plastic cap stamped "RPLS 4838" set for corner;

THENCE North 29 degrees 26 minutes 50 seconds West with a common line between said Ellis Joint Venture tract and said Telford tract a distance of

823.38 feet to the PLACE OF BEGINNING, 
and containing a calculated area of 

76.960 acres (3,352,391 square feet)
 of land.

REVISED: December 11, 2019 / Addressed updated title commitment.

REVISED: December 19, 2019 / Revised Easement Label.

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 3 of 3



N

2

9

°

 

2

6

'

 

5

0

"

W

 

 

8

2

3

.

3

8

'

N

6

4

°

 

2

3

'

 

1

5

"

E

 

 

7

0

7

.

2

7

'

N

6

4

°

 

5

3

'

 

0

0

"

E

 

 

5

8

1

.

9

9

'

S88° 32' 15"E  1150.28'

S

5

1

°

 

1

0

'

 

4

5

"

W

 

 

8

8

7

.

1

9

'

S

1

6

°

 

2

9

'

 

0

4

"

W

 

 

6

3

9

.

3

2

'

S

2

5

°

 

0

5

'

 

3

6

"

E

 

 

5

3

2

.

2

6

'

S

1

5

°

 

2

2

'
 

3

8

"

W

 

 

1

1

5

1

.

2

4

'

S

1

8

°

 

0

9

'

 

0

7

"

E

 

 

4

6

1

.

4

0

'

N

5

5

°

 

3

6

'

 

0

3

"

W

 

 

4

4

1

.

9

1

'

D=26°13'14"

R=670.00'

L=306.61'

CB=N42°29'40"W

CL=303.95'

N29° 23' 03"W  204.43'

S60° 19' 57"W  44.88'

N29° 25' 56"W  103.37'

N29° 26' 34"W  275.05'

N75° 00' 04"E  254.19'

N29° 25' 05"W  177.07'

S75° 03' 13"W  254.28'

N29° 26' 40"W  534.95'

N29° 30' 55"W  279.24'

N

6

4

°

 

0

5

'

 

2

2

"

E

 

 

3

1

2

.

9

5

'

5

4

0

'

CONTACT: JEFFREY W. LINDER, RLA

B A N N I S T E R 
240 North Mitchell Road Mansfield, TX 76063 817.842.2094 817.842.2095 fax

REGISTRATION # F-10599 (TEXAS)

E N G I N E E R I N G

F
i
l
e

:
 
B

:
\
C

l
i
e

n
t
s
\
1

1
6

 
(
A

e
r
o

f
i
r
m

a
 
C

o
r
p

o
r
a

t
i
o

n
)
\
1

1
6

-
2

0
-
0

0
2

 
(
7

6
 
A

C
 
P

D
 
R

e
z
o

n
i
n

g
 
-
 
G

r
a

n
d

 
P

r
a

i
r
i
e

)
\
C

i
v
i
l
\
E

x
h

i
b

i
t
s
\
D

e
v
e

l
o

p
m

e
n

t
 
P

l
a

n
 
E

x
h

i
b

i
t
 
A

 
-
 
C

o
l
o

r
e

d
 
E

x
h

i
b

i
t
.
d

w
g

 
 
|
|
 
 
D

a
t
e

 
P

l
o

t
t
e

d
:
 
1

1
/
2

/
2

0
2

0
 
1

1
:
2

0
 
A

M
 
 
|
|
 
 
P

l
o

t
t
e

d
 
B

y
:
 
j
o

h
n

Date Prepared: 02/04/2020

Date Revised: 11/2/2020

EXHIBIT "A"

ZONING EXHIBIT

FOR

76.960 Acres of land

out of the Joseph Lawrence Survey,

Abstract Number 616, City of Grand Prairie,

Ellis County, Texas

From: PD-399

To: PD-399A for Single and Multi-Family

Residential, General Retail, and

Open Space Uses

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

CITY GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS

Case Number Z200401A

LEGEND

SF-4 SINGLE FAMILY

SF-6 SINGLE-FAMILY

OPEN SPACE

MULTI- FAMILY

GENERAL RETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 1 SINGLE-FAMILTY DETACHED 37.21 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 2 MULTI-FAMILTY 11.53 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 3 MULTI-FAMILTY 18.61 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARLO RESTREPO VOLUME 2805,  PAGE 570 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM TELFORD AND WIFE, KAY TELFORD VOLUME 738,  PAGE 371 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE HIGHWAY 287 VOLUME 1484,  PAGE 675 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOE BOWERS AND JEFF HANSEN VOLUME 2399, PAGE 2279 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER OF JAMES EDMUND KEMP, JR., JUDY ANNE KEMP AMONETT, CAROLYN KEMP WITTENBRAKER AND JOHN STACY KEMP, BENEFICIARIES UNDER THE WILL OF KAMES E. KEMP, DECEASED VOLUME 2171, PAGE 510 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER OF (FIRST TRACT) VOLUME 2171, PAGE 510 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEXDEVCO GP LLC INSTRUMENT NUMBER 1900187 O.P.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM SUB GT, LP VOLUME 2805, PAGE 57 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER OF  NEHEMIAH PARTNERS, L.P. VOLUME 1661, PAGE 104 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERT S. DELLINGER (TRACT 1) VOLUME 2783, PAGE 1470 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA (JOE POOL LAKE) VOLUME 676, PAGE 506 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA (JOE POOL LAKE) VOLUME 676, PAGE 506 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOSEPH LAWRENCE SURVEY ABSTRACT NUMBER 616

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVIS ROAD PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS  ST. PAUL BRITTON ROAD VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA ZONE "AE" (SHADED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA ZONE "AE" (SHADED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA ZONE "X"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA ZONE "X"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA ZONE "X"

AutoCAD SHX Text
150' TEXAS ELECTRIC SERVICE COMPANY EASEMENT VOLUME 557, PAGE 50  D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE WATER MAIN EASEMENT INSTRUMENT NUMBER 1815292 O.P.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT WATER LINE EASEMENT INSTRUMENT NUMBER 1614133 O.P.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' WIDE  LONE STAR GAS COMPANY EASEMENT VOLUME 566, PAGE 1130 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' DFW MIDSTREAM SERVICES, LLC EASEMENT VOLUME 2436, PAGE 123 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT VOLUME 2436, PAGE 123 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
135' TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT EASEMENT VOLUME 2753, PAGE 2184 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' LONE STAR GAS COMPANY EASEMENT VOLUME 566, PAGE 1127 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT INSTRUMENT NUMBER 1614134 O.P.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DFW MIDSTREAM SERVICES, LLC EASEMENT VOLUME 2458,  PAGE 2433 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DFW MIDSTREAM SERVICES, LLC EASEMENT VOLUME 2458, PAGE 2439 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA ZONE "AE" (SHADED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET 'A' (50' ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET 'A' (50' ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET 'A' (60' ROW) W/DIVIDED LANDSCAPE MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET 'F' (50' ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET 'D' (50' ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET 'C' (50' ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET 'E' (50' ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
16X

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
27X

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
54X

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
1X

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMENITY CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
9X

AutoCAD SHX Text
38X

AutoCAD SHX Text
38X

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET 'B' (50' ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' ALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE B

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRANCE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
2X

AutoCAD SHX Text
58X

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' WIDE STREET R.O.W. DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
135' TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT EASEMENT VOLUME 2753, PAGE 2184 D.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVIS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVIS RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVIS RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' WIDE STREET R.O.W. DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' WIDE STREET R.O.W. DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' WIDE STREET R.O.W. DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET 'B' (60' ROW) W/DIVIDED LANDSCAPE MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVIS RD DEVELOPMENT LLC INST. NO. 2011127 O.P.R.E.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 5 OPEN SPACE 3.01 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LOT 2 FIRE STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 4 GENERAL RETAIL 3.81 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 6 GENERAL RETAIL 2.79 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER: BANNISTER ENGINEERING, LLC 240 NORTH MITCHELL ROAD MANSFIELD, TEXAS  76063 PHONE: 817-842-2094 CONTACT: CODY BROOKS, P.E. EMAIL: Cody@Bannistereng.com CONTACT: JEFFREY W. LINDER, RLA EMAIL: Jeff@Bannistereng.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE JOB NO. 116-20-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER / DEVELOPER: DAVID NICKLAS ORGAN DONOR AWARENESS FOUNDATION, INC 2935 SOUTH BELTLINE ROAD  GRAND PRAIRIE, TX 75225 CONTACT: CHASE DEBAUN PHONE: 972-263-6796 EMAIL: chase@aerofirmaoffice.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR: BANNISTER ENGINEERING, LLC 240 NORTH MITCHELL ROAD MANSFIELD, TEXAS  76063 CONTACT: MICHAEL DAVIS, RPLS PHONE: 817-842-2094 EMAIL:Mike@Bannistereng.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
St Paul

AutoCAD SHX Text
Cemetery

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKEVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
471

AutoCAD SHX Text
281

AutoCAD SHX Text
281

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTRACT-1 SITE DATA SUMMARY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL RESIDENTIAL LOTS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
X-LOTS (OPEN SPACE):

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMENITY CENTER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL ALL LOTS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
SF-4 RESIDENTIAL LOTS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
SF-6 RESIDENTIAL LOTS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

jtooley
Text Box
Exhibit B - Zoning ExhibitPage 1 of 1



Exhibit C - Conceptual Renderings
Page 1 of 4



Exhibit C - Conceptual Renderings
Page 2 of 4



Exhibit C - Conceptual Renderings
Page 3 of 4



Exhibit C - Conceptual Renderings
Page 4 of 4



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10569 Name: SU201101 - Impound Lot at 2409 E Main St

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:11/2/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:11/9/2020

Title: SU201101 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Impound Lot at 2409 E Main St (City Council District 5).
Specific Use Permit & Site Plan request for Auto Impound uses on four industrial lots.  1.402 acres out
of the Thomas Collins Survey, Abstract 308, being Westover Place Addition, Block A, Lots 3,4,7 & 8,
City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District and designated Specific
Use Permit-814A, located in CBD No. 4, generally located southeast of E. Main Street and Bagdad
Road, and addressed as 2409 E. Main Street.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A Location Map SU201101

Exhibit B Site Plan SU201101

Exhibit C Elevations SU201101

Exhibit D Operational Plan SU201101

Exhibit E Legal Descript SU201101

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant

Title

SU201101 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Impound Lot at 2409 E Main St (City Council District 5).  Specific
Use Permit & Site Plan request for Auto Impound uses on four industrial lots.  1.402 acres out of the Thomas
Collins Survey, Abstract 308, being Westover Place Addition, Block A, Lots 3,4,7 & 8, City of Grand Prairie,
Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District and designated Specific Use Permit-814A, located in
CBD No. 4, generally located southeast of E. Main Street and Bagdad Road, and addressed as 2409 E. Main
Street.

Presenter

Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

SU200701/S200701 -Specific Use Permit/Site Plan -Impound Lot at 2409 E. Main St. Rudy’s- Auto Sales (City

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10569, Version: 1

SU200701/S200701 -Specific Use Permit/Site Plan -Impound Lot at 2409 E. Main St. Rudy’s- Auto Sales (City
Council District 5). A request to consider amending Specific Use Permit-814A (S-814A) to allow for Auto
Impound Lot use on a portion of the property. The 1.402-acres property is out of the Thomas Collins Survey,
Abstract 308, being Westover Place Addition, Block A, Lots 3,4,7 & 8, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County,
Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District and designated Specific Use Permit-814A, located in CBD No. 4,
generally located  southeast of E. Main Street and Bagdad Road, addressed as 2409 E. Main Street.
 PURPOSE OF THE REQUEST:

This request was prompted by using portions of the property for on-site impound and storage of inoperable
vehicles. As a result, the operator has received citations and fines for code violations in storing inoperable and
wrecked vehicles on the property. In response, the operator is seeking to amend S-814A and site plan to allow
for auto impound ‘yard’ uses on the property.

Auto Impound ‘Yard’ Use is defined as a facility used for temporary impound and/or storage of abandoned or
inoperable automotive vehicles prior to being reclaimed, repaired or transported. An auto impound use require
the approval of Specific Use Permit (SUP) within the LI zoning district.

HISTORY:

The property was used for miscellaneous outside storage of trucks and trailers prior to the current used car
dealership.

· March 2009, City Council authorized SUP-814A allowing for used auto sales (Del Norte Motors aka,
Rudy’s Auto Sales).

· February 2010, an additional Certificate of Occupancy was issued for (Tejano Truck Sales)

· April 2011, City Council review and renew granting permanent authorization for SUP-814.
Both dealerships, and a finance division of the businesses are currently housed out of an 840 sq. ft.

masonry office building. The office building is located on the western portion of the property. The site
provides of approximately 124 parking spaces for car and truck sales inventory.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

Direction Zoning Existing Land Use

North Planned Development-237 (PD-237) District Vacant

East Planned Development-237 (PD-237) District Lito Auto Sales

West Light Industrial (LI) District Dario Auto Sales

South Light Industrial (LI) District Auto Related Business

Access to the site is from an existing commercial driveway located on the eastern portion of the site connecting
to E. Main Street and extending to the southern portion of the property. The site is secured with an 8’ wrought-
iron fence along the property’s perimeter and a matching 8’ wrought iron gate securing entry during non-
business hours.

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The existing used car dealerships function and operate within the accepted standards and practices regarding
the placement of sales inventory, customer and employee parking spaces. The operator proposes to set aside

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10569, Version: 1

approximately 40 spaces (gated) for repossessed vehicles, as shown on the updated site exhibit.

CODE VIOLATIONS:

Storing of inoperable and wrecked vehicles continue to occur on the site resulting in fines and citations in
violation of Article XX-Automotive Related Business Regulations, Section 29-138 referenced below.

Sec. 29-138. - Outside storage of inoperable vehicles and auto parts.

 (a) It shall be unlawful for any materials used in repair, inoperable vehicles, vehicle parts or any other related
materials to be stored outside an enclosed building at a body shop, auto repair shop or used car lot, unless the
business has a duly issued certificate of occupancy that specifically allows such storage or use.

(b) The practice of storing salvaged parts of such vehicles and/or the salvaging of any used parts of such
vehicles is specifically prohibited except for at a duly licensed and legally operated salvage yard.

(Ord. No. 5679, § 3, 10-15-96; Ord. No. 7746, § 1, 3-4-08)

CONFORMANCE WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The subject property is designated as appropriate for Commercial Retail & Office uses on the Future Land Use
Map (FLUM). Commercial, Office and Retail typically include commercial uses appropriate for retail and
office environments.  The proposal is inconsistent with the FLUM.
Objective 15: Policy 11 of the Comprehensive Plan addresses Auto Related Business (ARB) by advocating for
SUP requirement with conditions and standards when considered.

APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS:

This site shall conform to the Auto-Related Business (ARB) Standards including no outside repair and/or
storage of parts and materials, this includes junked, wrecked and salvaged vehicles.  Parking of vehicles shall
be on designated areas.

RECOMMENDATION:

DRC Staff cannot support the request for an impound yard within the Light Industrial district and due to the
continuing efforts made by:

· Adoption of Auto-Related Business Ordinance (Updated)

· Ongoing collaboration of ongoing Code Enforcement, Environmental Services and Planning
Department efforts in securing environmentally safe, viable, well maintained auto related business
sector of Grand Prairie’s Central Business District utilizing acceptable best practices, for promoting the
health, safety, welfare and overall aesthetics of Grand Prairie’s (CBD) Central Business District.

· Setting a precedent for other auto-related businesses in the practice of storing repossessed and
wrecked/salvaged inventory.

If considered for approval DRC staff recommends the operator comply with the following conditions:

Provide a log and/or a valid record for all repossessed vehicles located on the premises. The log/ledger shall be
created upon receipt and release of said vehicle on the premises. The log/ledger shall include the Vehicle
Identification Number (VIN), owner name and date the vehicle arrived on the premises. Loading and unloading
of vehicles done on-site, not permitted within public’s rights-of-way.  Nonrepairable Motor Vehicles and
Salvage Motor Vehicles are prohibited from being on-site longer than seven (7) calendar days.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10569, Version: 1

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 11/6/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



E Main St

N 
Ba

gd
ad

 R
d

S B
ag

da
d R

d

Poulin Av

´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand PrairieCASE LOCATION MAP
SU201101 - Specific Use Permit
Impound Lot at 2409 E. Main St.

EXHIBIT A - LOCATION MAP 
     PAGE 1 OF 1





PROPOSED SITE USE PLAN

RUDY'S AUTO SALES / TEJANO TRUCKS

  Grand Prairie, Texas 75050
2409 EAST MAIN 

EXHIBIT B - SITE PLAN 
   PAGE 1 OF 1



 

EXHIBIT C - ELEVATIONS 
     PAGE 1 OF 1



BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2409 E. MAIN 

 

This is an existing used auto sales lot here. There are two businesses, Tejano Trucks, and Rudy’s 

Auto Sales. They, along with three other lots (one in Irving, and two in Dallas) are all owned by 

one person, who also owns the finance company that finances some of the vehicles.  

Unfortunately, some of the vehicles must be repossessed. They propose to use the far southern 

end of the property as a holding lot for the repossessed vehicles.  

There will be no change to the existing business operated at Rudy’s Auto Sales, or Tejano 

Trucks. They will continue to operate as allowed under the current Auto Sales SUP that is in 

place. The applicant (owner) also owns the aforementioned three dealerships (Irving Trucks in 

Irving, and two more Rudy’s Auto Sales sites in Dallas). All vehicles sold or displayed for sale at 

this address are placed for sale by Rudy’s Auto Sales, or Tejano Trucks, or on inter-dealership 

loan from one of the above named affiliate dealerships. All vehicles on sales lot are sold from 

the same office, by the same owner. All sales vehicles have a “Terms of Sale” sticker in the 

window, with the dealer name on it. 

They have to keep the repossessed vehicles for 30 days to allow the folks an opportunity to 

redeem them. Also, sometimes they have been damaged, and there are insurance company 

delays before vehicles can be resold. Also there are very few instances of a legal claim against a 

vehicle (NTTA, TxDot, etc.) and these must be resolved before vehicles can be resold. However, 

under no circumstances will any vehicle be in this lot for a period greater than 180 days from 

arrival. 

There will ONLY be vehicles that are owned/financed by the owner of the property stored 

here. Paperwork (Copies of titles, with impound dates stamped on them) will be kept on file for 

each vehicle.   

All ARB rules and regulations will continue to be strictly adhered to.  

NO SALVAGING OR OTHER WORK WILL BE DONE ON ANY VEHICLES, EXCEPT FOR WHATEVER IS 

NECESSARY TO ALLOW THEM TO BE MOVED. 

EXHIBIT D - OPERATIONAL PLAN 
           PAGE 1 OF 1



EXHIBIT E - LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
         PAGE 1 OF 2



EXHIBIT E - LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
         PAGE 1 OF 2


	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10558
	Microsoft Word - 10-26-2020.docx
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10559
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8893302&GUID=574E79BB-B069-4965-9076-E00359A241B4
	V501-FP-TRACT 3-37470
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10560
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904385&GUID=25679BAC-02E8-46FF-939B-243B6EB05215
	24X36
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10561
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8896260&GUID=5CB94EE7-5FF4-49F5-97FD-8EE30B8F130F
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8896261&GUID=62C6DF8F-CDC5-4F9A-9DDB-B20AE33F15B0
	116-20-006 Survey Base-24X36 Prelim Plat sh1
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 Prelim Plat sh1


	116-20-006 Survey Base-24X36 Prelim Plat sh2
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 Prelim Plat sh2


	116-20-006 Survey Base-24X36 Prelim Plat sh3
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 Prelim Plat sh3


	116-20-006 Survey Base-24X36 Prelim Plat sh4
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 Prelim Plat sh4


	116-20-006 Survey Base-24X36 Prelim Plat sh5
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 Prelim Plat sh5


	116-20-006 Survey Base-24X36 Prelim Plat sh1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 Prelim Plat sh1


	116-20-006 Survey Base-24X36 Prelim Plat sh4.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 Prelim Plat sh4


	116-20-006 Survey Base-24X36 Prelim Plat sh3.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 Prelim Plat sh3


	116-20-006 Survey Base-24X36 Prelim Plat sh2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 Prelim Plat sh2


	116-20-006 Survey Base-24X36 Prelim Plat sh3.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 Prelim Plat sh3


	116-20-006 Survey Base-24X36 Prelim Plat sh4.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24X36 Prelim Plat sh4



	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10562
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904192&GUID=E99D5771-03DA-4F43-BE10-EB2A1F3D52DA
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904193&GUID=B083C9C4-2550-4F07-BE3E-75C1F436B3A2
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10563
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904522&GUID=F6638292-9CFA-49DA-A981-6590B586A5B3
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904523&GUID=DC8D6E4A-CBD9-4AC5-B542-028AD0DFDDDF
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904524&GUID=D6E09C12-AC95-49D3-A5C3-F8A187EF4845
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904525&GUID=3E2FFB63-A4DC-4ABB-BFDD-B7D0CF81F551
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904526&GUID=8AA6AF1E-4969-4814-B403-7470EE136216
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10564
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904402&GUID=5C5574FE-E3F4-4E82-AB5A-2CDEC9F2575F
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904406&GUID=C42E7C3A-425E-477C-9841-DAFC6C507CB1
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904414&GUID=21F8D6E1-E896-4F4E-8DC7-B9D2D44C35AF
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904418&GUID=5A482189-9CA1-4AC1-876D-91226CAB30C7
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904419&GUID=90623F0E-EC64-4BDE-B231-F33C38843606
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904420&GUID=E9CAE378-B025-4EBF-BC23-2726F309ACF3
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10565
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904241&GUID=D6281933-C8B7-4789-B864-3BAE26648625
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904245&GUID=E79C3EDA-667B-43AE-B738-B279C686ECB4
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904247&GUID=550C4D52-10B1-45EC-999E-DB68F03DC676
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904250&GUID=F14CB8B9-8045-4723-BB6A-2CBE45C65FD1
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904253&GUID=A09CF48E-0223-413E-96ED-C7FB191FC41D
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10566
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904393&GUID=33DC1D4B-F933-4E46-98D2-549A58651C0C
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8904401&GUID=F06CAD68-6F5A-477D-9B79-380F423506F8
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10567
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10568
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8896266&GUID=DFE4F832-48DC-4A91-A2E8-A173587B12C6
	EXH-A
	Sheets and Views
	EXH-A


	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8896275&GUID=0A6A7090-34DE-44E7-9E62-6A57C9578A14
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10569
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8893540&GUID=6A482A46-B516-4AC2-8DCE-EFAF7FD14DBA
	Model
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8893543&GUID=BC073C53-B1B1-439A-8D71-AF0633A3F823
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8893546&GUID=8F4F0313-44D0-43D7-B14B-1B6DDB648E8E
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8893547&GUID=D5F514D8-128E-4F05-86FF-DA5FBB14446A




